
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Date: 28/02/11 Telephone Enquiries  01752 304867 Fax 01752 304819 

Please ask for Nicola Kirby, Senior Democratic Support 
Officer (Cabinet)  e-mail nicola.kirby@plymouth.gov.

uk 
 
 

CABINET 
 
DATE: 
TIME: 
PLACE: 

TUESDAY 8 MARCH 2011 
2PM 
WARSPITE ROOM, COUNCIL HOUSE 

 
Members – 
Councillor Mrs Pengelly, Chair 
Councillor Fry, Vice Chair 
Councillors Bowyer, Brookshaw, Jordan, Michael Leaves, Sam Leaves, Monahan, 
Mrs Watkins and Wigens 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business 
overleaf 
 
Members and Officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the meeting. 
 
Please note that, unless the Chair agrees, mobile phones should be switched off 
and speech, video and photographic equipment should not be used during 
meetings. 
 
 
 

BARRY KEEL 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

BARRY KEEL 
Chief Executive 
Floor 1 - Civic Centre 
Plymouth 
PL1 2AA 
 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Public Document Pack



 

 
    CABINET 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Cabinet Members. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Cabinet Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of 

items on this agenda. 
  
3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 30) 
  
 To sign and confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meetings held on 7 and 

8 February 2011.  
  
4. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC    
  
 To receive questions from the public in accordance with the Constitution. 

 
Questions, of no longer than 50 words, can be submitted to the Democratic 
Support Unit, Corporate Support Department, Plymouth City Council, Civic Centre, 
Plymouth, PL1 2AA, or email to democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk. Any 
questions must be received at least five clear working days before the date of the 
meeting. 

  
5. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be 

brought forward for urgent consideration. 
  

REPORTS FROM SCRUTINY 
  
6. YOUNG CARERS   (Pages 31 - 48) 
  
 Councillor Mrs Stephens (Chair of the Children and Young People’s Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel Task and Finish Group) and Councillor James (Chair of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board have been invited to attend the 
meeting, to present the recommendations of the task and finish group.    
 
CMT Lead Officer: Director of Services for Children and Young People 
 
A written report will also be submitted on the recommendations. 



 

  
CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR BOWYER 

  
7. AWARD OF INSURANCE CONTRACTS   (Pages 49 - 52) 
  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director for Corporate Support 

 
A written report will be submitted on the award of insurance contracts following 
their expiry on 31 March 2011 and following a tendering procedure for the renewal 
of all policies from 1 April 2011. 
 
See also item 12 below. 

  
CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR MRS WATKINS 

  
8. SETTING THE SCHOOLS REVENUE BUDGET 2011/12   (Pages 53 - 66) 
  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director of Services for Children and Young People 

 
A written report will be submitted on the proposed schools revenue budget 
2011/12, including the recommendations of the Schools Forum, funding to Special 
Educational Needs pupils and the proposed Dedicated Schools Grant.     
 

  
9. SERVICES FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 

BASIC NEED PROGRAMME   
(Pages 67 - 80) 

  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director of Services for Children and Young People 

 
A written report will be submitted to seek approval from the Office of the Schools 
Adjudicator to increase the Planned Admission Number for five primary schools in 
the city with effect from 1 September 2011. 

  
CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR WIGENS 

  
10. LOCAL SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT FUND - FUNDING 

APPLICATION   
(Pages 81 - 94) 

  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director for Development and Regeneration 

 
The Cabinet will be asked to consider a written report seeking approval for 
the submission of a funding bid to the Department for Transport for funding 
from the Local Sustainable Transport Fund. 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  



 

11. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 

Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following items 
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as 
amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 

 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
 
That under the law, the Committee is entitled to consider certain items in private.  
Members of the public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are 
discussed. 
 

CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR BOWYER 
  
12. AWARD OF INSURANCE CONTRACTS (E3)   (Pages 95 - 100) 
  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director for Corporate Support 

 
With reference to item 7 above, a written report will be submitted on the full 
financial details of the proposed contract award.  

  
CABINET MEMBERS: COUNCILLORS BOWYER AND BROOKSHAW 

  
13. MOUNT EDGCUMBE 2011/12 - 2013/14 BUDGET 

SETTING (E3)   
(Pages 101 - 122) 

  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director for Community Services  

 
A written report will be submitted on the Mount Edgcumbe 2011/12 proposed 
revenue budget as recommended by the Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee. 

  
 



��������	
�����
���������������

��������
�

	
�����
���������������
�

���������
�
����������	
��	�
��
����	��	��
	������	
����������	����	���
	������	
�����������	����
��	����������	�������	
����
�	�
��
��	���	�
��
��	
�������	

��	 ������	���	 ��
���	
	
!���	��	���
�����
"	!���	�����
	#$��
����	%��	���&����
	��&&���'�	�����
	�������
	
#$��
����	%��	���������	�
����
�'�	�����
�	���
�	#$��
����	�%	�
����
�	%��	������
�	���	
(����	�
�&�
'�	!������	����
	#!�����	���
%	)*
�����
'�	+��	,��
�	#!��������	$��
����	
%��	$
�������	���	-��
�����
'�	����
	$������	#!��������	$��
����	%��	)�������
����	
�
����
�'�	.���
�	-��/�����	#�����
����&	��0	���1
��	��2���������'�	
�����	�������	
#�����
����&	��������
	
����
�'	$����	��
&&
��	#,
��	�%	�
���	�
����
�'	!����	
+�����	#�
����	�&
�������	������
�
��	����
�'	���	
���	+���
�	#�����
����&	���1
��	
$��
����'�	
	
+�
	�

����	�����
�	��	3�44	&�	���	%�����
�	��	5�56	&��	
	
�
�������������������������������������������
��������������������
�����������������������
�
���������������� �����
�������!��"����������#�������������
����������������
��
������
������������������������$��������������!�
	

344�	 ���������������������������
	
+�
�
	�
�
	��	�
����������	�%	���
�
��	��	���������
	����	��
	���
	�%	�������	%���	
�����������	��	�
������	��	��
	��
�	���
�	������
������	��	����	�

�����	
	

343�	  !�����������	��"���!#������
	
+�
�
	�
�
	��	7�
������	��/����
�	/�	��
	&�/����	%��	����	�

�����	��	���������
	����	
��
	�������������		+�
	7�
������	�
�
��
�	�
�
	���	�%	���
	���	�����	/
	�
�&���
�	
��	/�	��
	�%%��
���	��	��������		
	

345�	 �����$��������!�"�%������$���%�������������"���&�������
#!�����������������"������!��	�������%����������	����
���$�������
	
+�
	$��
����	%��	$
�
��&�
��	���	.
�
�
������	��/����
�	�	�
&���	��	��
	
/���������	��	���	��	��
	�����	�����
��	���
	#�
����
�	�
�����'	%��	��
	
&�����
�
��	�%	����
	��
���
��	�
����
����!	�������	�
&���	���	����	/

�	������
�
�	
/�	$
���	������	�������	�����	���	���

�	��	�
�
���
	�&&�����	�%	��
	�����	
�����
��	���
	��	��������	����	�������8�	��/��
��		!	�������	�
&���	���	
�
����
�������	���	/
���	���
	��	+��/��	�������	�����	�����	/
	������
����	��
	
�
&���	���
�	��	��
	����					
	

Agenda Item 3Page 1



+�
	�����	�����
�	��/��
�	

�/
��	����	��
	�
&���	�
&�
�
��
�	�	�
�	���
����
	��	�	
&��1
��	���������	���

	��������	���	���	1���
�	%���
�	��	���
	���
	����	�	����
����
	
��������	���	%����	��	�
��	����	��
	�
������	����
�		
	
+�
	&����
����&	���	���
�	��
	�
����	��	&��	%������	���������	���	��
	&��&����	
��/����
�	���	��	
*�
��
��	��������	%��	����
	%���	/���	�	���
����	���	�	�
�������	
&
��&
����
�	

	
��
	����
��
�	��
	&�
�
�������	��	��
	&�/���	���	��&
�	����	��
�	��
	������	
�������	���
	&
�&�
	�����	���
	��	�&&��������	��	�

	��
	&��&�����	���	���	��
	
��������	�����	/
�
%��	�����	�������	��*	&��
���	��������	���	��
	���������	

	
+�
	%����	����
	�%	��
	&���
��	���	�&&�����	�%	��
	�����	�����
��	���
�		+�
	�
*�	
����
	�����	/
	��
	��/�������	�%	��	�&&��������	%��	&�������	&
��������	���	
��������
	�����	
��	9��
��	�����	/
	��/�������	��	�&&��������	��	��
	)�������
��	
!�
���	%��	��	
�������
����	&
�����	

	

��	9��
��	���	���
���	/

�	�
�
��
�	��	��
	&�
%
��
�	/���
�	�������	��
	
&�����
�
��	&���
���		+�
	��/��
�	���	������
����	�����	��
��
�	��
	���
	/
���	
&��	%������	���	�%%����/�
	���	�%	��	����	��
	&����
����&	�����	&���

�	����	��
	�����	
�����
��	���
	��	�
���
	$
%��	��0	��
���	��&&���	��	�
��	��	���
	��
	&��1
��	
%�������	

�

���	+���
�	#�����
����&	��������
	$��
����'	���
	�	&�
�
�������	:	
	

#�'	 ��	��
	�����	 
��	$
���	 ���
	�����
����&;	
#/'	 ��	 ��
	 <�����
	 �����
��	 ���
	 �����	 ���	 �&&���
�	 ��	 !&���	

544=;	
#�'	 ��	��
	�
������	����
	��
���
��	��������;	
#�'	 ��	��
	&����
����&8�	&��1
��	���
��/�
;	
#
'	 ��	��
	&����
����&�8	�����	�����
��	���
;			
#%'	 &��������	�	�������	�%	�
�	&
�%������
	�
����
�	%��	:	

•	 ����
	�������������		
•	 �
�������	���	���&������;	
•	 ���
�����	%���	����%���;	

���&�����	 ��
	�����	�����
��	���
	����	 ��
	<�����
	�����
��	
���
;			

#�'	 ����������	 ����	 ��
	 &����
����&8�	 &�
%
��
�	 /���
�	 ���	 
��	
9��
��;			

#�'	 ��	��
	����	
%%���
���	
�
���	%���	����
	%�������	��	/
	�����
�	��	
>����	(����	$
���&���	$�������;		

#�'	 ��	��
	
�������
����	/
�
%���	���	��&���	�%	��
	%�������;	
#1'	 ����������	 ��
	 
*&
��
�	 
��������	 �������	 ����
	 �����
������	

����
	���
����
	������;	
#�'	 �������	 ��
	 �%%����/�����	 %��	 ��
	 &����
����&	 ���	 &����
�	

��������;		
#�'	 ��	��
	�
����
��������	/
%��
	��/��
��	

	
	
	

Page 2




���	+���
�	����	�������
�	����	��
	&�
�
�������	����
�	�����	/
	&���
�	��	��
	
&����
����&8�	�
/���
�		,
	����	��
�	

�/
��8	���
�����	��	��
	�
&���	�%	��
	�

����	
�%	��
	�����	��������	���
�	�����	���	�
�	��	?3	�������	#�����	���	/

�	&�/����
�'	
���	��	��
	&��&��
�	�
�&���
�	�����	���	/

�	��������
�	��	��
	�

�����			

	
+�
	�����	�
&���
�	����	��	���������
	����	����
���
	.��
	5�5	�%	��
	�������������	
>��	��/��
�	

�/
��	���	������	&
��������	��	����
��	��/��
��			
	
+�
	�����	&��&��
��	����������	
������	�
����
��	���	��	���	!��

�	����	��
	
��/��
�	�����	�
��	%���	��*	�����������"	���

	%���	��
	������	����&	���	���

	%���	
��
	�&&�������	����&�	����	�	��*����	�%	%��
	�����
�	%��	
���	����������	��	�&
���				
	
�����������	�����	����
�	���
��	)�����	
�����	�
��
�	���	
��	>��������	���
��
�	
���	����
��
�	��/��
��					�
� �
0�	��
��	�
&�
�
���������	�	���/
�	�%	����
���	�
�
	���
	��	�
�&
��	�%	��
	
&��&�����	���������	%�

�
#�'	 ����	��
	��%��������	&�
�
��
�	���	�����&�
�
;		
#�'	 ����	��
	�
����
��������	�
�
	��������	��	��
	&�������
�	��	��
	

���&����
	&���;	
#�'	 ��
	/
�
%����	���������	�	�������

�	����	�
��	�
���������&	����	

��
	
�������	�%	$
%
��
	%��	�	���/��
�	�
��	���	&��
�	&����	
�
�����	 ��	 ��

�	 
�
����	 ������
��/�
	 �������	 ���	 ��
�&
�	

�
���	/����;	

#&'	 ����	 ��
	 ������	 �%	 ��
	 �����
�����	 ���	 ��	 �	 �
��
��	 &�&����
�	
��
�;	

#7'	 ��
	��&���	��	�
����	���	��%
	
*&
������;		
#�'	 3=4	�����	���
�
���	��	�	�����	/�����	?@6	����	�	�
��;		
#�'	 ����
	���	���	&��������;		
#�'	 ������	��&���;		
#�'	 ��
	��&���	��	&��&
���	&���
�	��	��
	��������;			
#�'	 ��
	
�������
����	/
�
%���	���	�
���
�	���/��	%���&����;	
#�'	 ��
	����
	�%	���	 �
��������	 ��	����
�
	�	����
�	 ���
	�%	����
	

���
�����	���	
�
���	�
���
��;	
#*'	 ����	
��	9��
��	 ���	 �
�
��
�	��������	 �
���������	 ���	���	

������
��/�
	
*&
��
��
;	
#�'	 ��
	�����
	�%	�
����	�%	��
	/�������	%���	������������	����
	��	

���;			
#A'	 ��
	�

�	%��	&��&
�	������������;	
#��'	 ��
	�

�	%��	���	�����������	��	���������
	��
	�����/�����	�%	���
;		
#//'	 ��
	 %����������	 �%	 ��
	 �����	 ��������	 ���
�	 ��	 ��
	 	 ����	 �%	 ���	

�
�����	��
	��	���	����
�������	�
���������;		
#��'	 ��
	�
�
��&���	�
��������	������	��
	��������	&
����;			
#��'	 ��
	���/�����	�%	��
	&��&����	�%	�
�������	����
��
��	
#

'	 ����	����%���	���	���	��	�&�����	

�����
+�
	�����	�����
�	��
	�����������	%��	��
��	������/�������	
	
	

Page 3



����������	
����
�	�
��
�	#��/��
�	

�/
�	%��	���������	�
����
�	#���

�	��
�
�	
 ���
	���	��������/�����''	��������
�	��
	�
&���	���	��
�	

�/
��8	���
�����	��	��
	
�����	�������	%���	��
	���
&����
	�%	��
	�����	�����
��	���
	�����	������
�	
��	
9��
��8�	
�
���	%���	����
	&��&�����	

0�	544=�	���������	$
���	���	+��/��	��������	1���
�	���
��
�	��	����	%��	�	�����	
����
�	��	��
	����
	����
�	��	�
&���
	��
	
�������
������	��������	���	
*&
����
	
&������
	�%	/������	����
�	

+�
	�����	 
��	$
���	 ���
	�����
����&	���	/

�	�/�
	��	���
��	�����%�����	
&�����
	%�����
	��
����	����	�����	���	���
	/

�	������/�
	���	��
	�������	����
�	
����
�		

��	&������	�
�����
�	���	
*&
����
�	��
	&�����
�
��	&���
��	���	�
�	��	�	��������	
�����	�����
�	��	��
	�������8�	���&�
�	����
	�����
��	���	��
	��/��
�	/
��
�
�	���	
�����%�����	%��������	���	
�������
����	/
�
%����	

+�
	���&���	/
����	��
	/��	�����	����	��
	��
	����
	��	��	
�
���	�����
	����	
�����	&�����
	�
��	���	
�
��������	��	$
���&���	>����	���
�		

+�
	��������	���	��	��&������	���
	��	��
	����8�	
������	���	��	���
	�	&����	����	
�����	��&&��	
�
���	���
����	��	��
	��������	�����	�
�&	���
	��
	/��
	���
	����2

%%
����
�	��

�
�	���	�
�&
�	��	��	�

�	���/��	�
�������	����
���	�

+�
	��/��
�	���	/
���	���
�	�%	��	������
�
�	����	��
	%����	/����
��	���
	���	������	
�&&���
�	�%%����/������	<��
	�&&���
��	��
	&�������	�&&��������	&���
��	�����	
%������		.������	&�����
�	��	����	�����	/
	%��	��
	���&���	��	�/����	��	
�������
����	
&
����	%���	��
	)�������
��	!�
����		


��	9��
��	���	���	�
�	��/����
�	�	&�������	�&&��������	���	�����	/
	�������	
���������	��	
*&����	��
��	&��&����	���	����
�	��	����	��
	&�/���	���	��	���	/
%��
	
%�������	��/�������	��
��	&�����	

+�
	�
����
��������	���	/

�	�
���
�	/
����
	�%	��
	�/�
��
	�%	��
	���
%	
)*
�����
�	���	�
�
	&�
�
��
�	��	��/��
�	%��	�&&������	��	%������	:	
	

B.
����
�������	3"	+�	���

	����	��
	�����	����	�%	��
	��������	&��&��
�	
/�	
��	9��
��	 ��	 ������	 ��
	 �%%����/�����	 ����
���	 �
�	 ���	 ��	 ��
	<�����
	
�����
��	���
	���������	�
������;	��	���

	��
	�
����
�	�
�����	�%	��
	
���%�	 �����	 �����
��	 ���
	 �
�	 ���	 ��	 !&&
���*	 �	 ���	 ��	 �
�
���
	 ��
	
�&&�����	 �%	 ��
	 �����	 �����
��	 ���
	 %��	 ��
	 ������
�
��	 �%	  ���
	
+�
���
��	 �
����
�	 ��	 ��������	 ����	 �������8�	 ��
	 ���
%	 )*
�����
	 ��	
�����	 �%	 ��
	 ���1
��	 )*
�����
�	 ��	 ���� &���
�� ����
������ �
� ���� ��� ����
��������	 ��	������������	����	
���	&����
�	�������C�	�
��	<%%��
�	��	��
	
�����
����&	���1
��	)*
�����
	#$
���	������	��������	$
&���	)*
�����
	
$��
����	 %��	 )�������
���	 )������	 ���	������
	 ��������	����	 ��������	
$��
����	 %��	 $
�
��&�
��	 ���	 +��/��	 ��������	 )�������
��	
����������
�'�	

	

Page 4



.
����"	+�
	�����	�����
��	���
	����	/
	��/����
�	��	$
%���	0�	��������	
������	�
������
	����
�����	���	���%��
�����	��%��������	���	��	��	�������	
����	��
	����	
*&
��
��	����
�	�%	�
�����	����	��
	%����	����2�%%	��	��	
�
�
���
	��
	����	��	��
	���
%	)*
�����
	��	�����	�%	��
	���1
��	
)*
�����
�	
������&���
������
�������
�������������������!�
	
.
����
�������	5"		+���	��
	�������	%�������	���%����	��	$
%��	����	��	��	
�������
�	��	�

����	���	����
	�%	��
	����	�%	����	&��1
��	��
�	��
	��%
���
	
�%	��
	��0	���������	+�
	����	�
�������	�
���������	��
�����	������
�	��	��
	
�����	�����
��	���
	�
�
��
	����	
������
�	��	��	3=2�����	�
���	���	�	
%��
���	
*�����
	���
	)���	���
�
��	��	3�46�	0�	��	�
����
��
�	����	
����	��
�����	/
	�����
�	%��	��	�
������	��
�	��
	����
	��%
	�%	��
	&��1
��	
�����	
7���
�	��	D??�������	%��	��
	&����
����&	��	�	����
;	D3@�������	%��	
��������	����	��������	D6	�������	%��	+��/��	�������	���	D35�������	%��	
$
���	������	��������	
	
.
����"	!�	����
��	$
%��	 �
7���
	�
�/
��	 ��	/
	����
	�%	 ��
	&��
�����	
����	��&���������	�%	�
���������
�	�%%
�����	��
	&��1
��	����	/
%��
	
��
����	
����	��
	��0	���������		+�
	�������	�
������
�	����	����
�	����	�����	����	
/
	%�*
�	��	 %��������	����
�	�
�����	����	�����	����	 �
����	����	��
	�������	
����������	��
	��%
	�%	��
	��������	����	��	����
	�
�	���	������	�
���������	
��������	��
�������8	

	
+�
	&��&�����	�
�
	�
����
�	/�	����������	����
�	#��/��
�	

�/
�	%��	������
�	
���&
����	�
�&�
	���	-��
�����
'�	

	
0�	�
�&���
	��	7�
������	/�	��/��
�	

�/
���	�����������	
����
�	�
��
��	����
�	
���	
���	+���
�	�
�&���
�	��	%������	2			
	

#%%'	 ��
	&��&��
	�%	��
	�����	�����
��	���
	���	������
	��	�&���
	���	
���&������	��	��
	<�����
	�����
��	���
	�����	���	���
	��
��
�����	
���	�����
�	��
	��������	��	�

	�%	�/1
����
�	���	����	�����������	�
�	
���	��	��
	<�����
	�����
��	���
	���	/

�	�
�;		
	

#��'	 /
%��
	��	���	�
��	��	$
%��	��	��
	�
*�	%
�	�

���	��
	�����	�����
��	
���
	�����	�

�	��	/
	�&���
�	��	������
	�������	�����
�	%���	����	
�&&�����	&���
��	���
��
�	����	�����	�����
�	�
�������	%���	
%���������	��
	��������	����	
��	9��
���		$
%��	�����	��
�	&�����
	
��
��	%����	�&&�����	��	
����	���	���%���	��
	�����	�%	��0	��
����;		
	

#��'	 �%	��/��
�	���	���	�&&���
	��
	�����	�����
��	���
�	��
	�������	
�����	/
	/�
������	��
	�����	 ������	!��

�
��	�����	����	����	
�&&�����	�����	����	/
	�����
��	��	�������	�%	�%%����/������	�����	���	
/

�	�����	���	��	/
	��
	���
�	������
	�%	���	��
	�������	��	�&&���
	
��
	�����	�����
��	���
	�����	�
����	��	����	�������	/
���	���/�
	%��	
��
	����
�	�%	��
	���
�	���	���������	��������	����	�������	�����	
����	���
	��	�����	��	�
�����	���	����
	��	����%���	����
	�����
�	
��������	���	%����;		
	
	

Page 5



#��'	 ��
	�����	�����
��	���
	����	&��1
�����	�&���
�	��
	<�����
	�����
��	
���
	����	&��1
������	����	�
�	��%��������	���	������
�	��
	�
������	
����
	��
���
��	��������	&��&��
�	/�	
��	9��
���		+�
�
	�����	
�
�
	�����	/��
�	��	�����&�����	����	��	%����
	����
	������
��	
��%������	���
��	���	
*&
��
�	�
�������	���
�;	
	

#11'	 ��
	&��1
��
�	����	��	��
	�����	�����
��	���
	���	�����%�������	���
�	
����	��
	
������
	��	��
	<�����
	�����
��	���
	/
����
	��
	����
�	
���	/��
�	��	�	��
��
�����	��������	���	����
	������	&��1
������	��	
����	���
�	+�
	�����	�����
��	���
	������
�	��������	�
���
�	
������
�	���	�
%�
��
�	
��	9��
��8�	��������	�����	���	�%%
����	��
	
&����
����&	�
��	����	����
	%��	���
��	&�����	��
	��	��
	�����%�����	

�������	��������
�	����
�	��	�
�����	��
	
�
���	��	��
	>����	���
;		
	

#��'	 ��������	����	�������	���	�	����
�	�
��	����	��������
	����	��
	
���
�	��������	/
����
	��	���	��
	����
��	����
	������
	%��
����	���	
���	�����	&���/�
	�����	/
	/��
�	��	��
	������	������
	�
���
�
�	��	
��
	%�������;	
	

#��'	 �����	���	�����
	��
�	���
	��	������	�����	�����	/
	/��
�	��	
������	������
�	/
���	�
���	����	��	�
���	�%	�
�������	���	�
������	
����
	�
���
�
�	��	
��	9��
���	0�%������	�����	����	/
	�	%�����	��	
��������	�����	���	��	���	�����
�	��	�
�	�
���������;	��
����	

#��'	 
���	��������	���������	���������	���	���
���	
*�

�
�	��
	
�
�������	����
��	
���/����
�	��	��
	<�����
	�����
��	���
	����	?3	
&
�	�
��	��	544EF34�		9&���
�	���
�����	����
��
�	����	�
�������	
�����	�������
	��	��&���
	����	��������	�
������	��
�	G6	&
�	�
��	
���	��
	&����
����&	��	�	����
	����
����	��
�	66	&
�	�
��;		
	

#��'	 ��
	�
�������	���
	���	���
�	����	����	��	$
���	���	+��/��	��	��
�
	
�
�
	�
�	��%%
�
��
�	/
��

�	��
	��
���	����	��������	/
���	�	���
	
��/��	��
�	����	$
���	���	+��/���		��������	����	���	���
	
����������	&��/�
��	����	��	������
	���	���
��	%��	�
�������	
�������
��	��	����	&��&
���
�	����	��	����2���
	%�����	�
����
�	
�������	���	�����&�
	����&����	����
�;		
	

#��'	 ����	�
����	��	�
�������	���	/
���	�	��

�	�����	��
	��������	�
�
	
&
�%������	/
��
�	����	��
���
	�������	�
�������	����
��	����������	
���	��	���
�	��	�/����	$
%��	%������	�&&������	��	�������	
�������
��	��	�
������	����
	���	��&������	�
�������	���	��	/
	
�
��������
��	
��	9��
��8�	��������	���	%��	�
������	����
	����	
���	�&���
�	���
�����	����
��
�	����	�
�������	�����	�������
	��	
��&���
�		+�
	%�������	�%%
�
�	/�	
��	9��
��	���	�	��*����	
��&�����	���	�����	&�����
	��

�	��������/�
	
�
����		0�	���	
���
��
�	����	%��	��
	����
	����	���	���	�
��
�	��	�
����
�;	
	
	
	
	

Page 6



#&&'	 ����	�
����	��	�������	��	���
������
	�
��������
��	��
	��/��
�	
�

����	���	�������	��	��
	�%%����/�����	�%	��
	�����	�����
��	���
�	
%��������	�&&�����	�%	��
	&�
%
��
�	��������	��	&���	�%	���	����
	
�����
��	���	<�����
	�����
��	���
�	!��	��
	���������
�	������
�	
������������	���	����
����
���	������	����
�	��	�	����
	�%	��%%
�
��	
�
��������
��	���
	��	��
	���
	����������	����	��	
�
���	%���	
����
	��������	���	��
	���
��	��	/
	��
	/
��	����
��	+�
	&����
����&	
�&&�����
�	��
	�&
�������	����
	�����
�
��	��������	�������	
&�
����/���	
�
���	%���	����
	���	��
	����
�	���%���
�	����	���	��
	
����	�&&��&����
	��������	%��	��
	&����
����&�		)�
���	%���	����
	���	
�	��%
�	���
�	���	�
��
�	�
��������	��/1
��	��	��������	
�������
����	
��������	���	��
��
�	�	���/�
	&������	��	��
	%���	�%	
�
���;	
	

#77'	 ��
	
�������
����	/
�
%���	�%	
��	9��
��8�	��������	�
�
	����	��	
�������

�	��	���
��	��	�
���	EH	&
�	�
��	�%	�
������	����
	%���	
����%����	0�	���	�
��	����	
�
���	
%%���
���	&��1
������	/�	�����	��
	
�
��	��	�
��	&��������	
�
���������	��%��	&
�	�
��	�%	��
	
�
���	
&�����
�	�����	/
	�����
�	��	��

�	��������/�
	
�
���	�����	�����	
�
�&	�%%�
�	��
	>����	���
8�	���/��	%���&����	���	�
���
	��
��	���	

��������	/�	���	������	��	&�����
	��
��	���	�
��	��	���
	%���	��
��	
/���
�	����
�;		

	
#��'	 ��
	���������	�����	/
	�/�
	��	���
	��
��	���	���	�
���	���
	�/���	

��
	&��1
��	��	�	�
��
�	�%	����	������	&����
�	%��	�
/������		+�
	
&�������	���	
�������
����	&
����	�&&��������	&���
��
�	�����	/���	
������
	&�/���	������������	
*
����
�;	
	

#��'	 
��	9��
��	
������
�	����	��
	&�������	���	&
��������	�&&���������	
�����	/
	���
	��	
����F!&���	5434�	0�	���	���
	�	������
��/�
	���
	
/
%��
	��
�
	�&&���������	�
�
	�
�
����
��	&����/��	��	��
	/
�������	
�%	5435;	
		

#��'	 �%	&�������	&
��������	���	���	���

��	�
&
�����	��	��
	�
�����	%��	
�
%�����	��
	&����
����&	���	
��	9��
��	�����	������
�	��
	/����	�%	
��
	�
������	���	��
�	�
���
	��
��
�	��	�&&
��	��	�
�
��&	��	
���
������
	&��1
��	&���	%��	������
������	/�	��
	&����
�	��������;		�

�
#��'	 ����	�
����	��	��
	�
����
�	�
�����	�%	��
	�����	�����
��	���
�	��
	

�%%��
��	�
�
	�

����	��	&��	��	����	��%��������	��	&����/�
	��	��
	
&�/���	�������		+�
	%���	�����
��	���	���
�	��	$
%��	���	������
�	
����
�������	�
������
	��%��������;					�
	

#��'	 ��
	>����	(���	���
	���	���	������/�
	%��	������
������	��
�	�������	
&����
��	�
��
�
�	���	���������
�	&��
�����	����
	���
�	������	
���������	/��	��
	 ���
	$
�
��&�
��	����	$����
��	���	�������	
&�����
�	%��	���������
�	���
�	��	/
	������
�
�	��������		+���	�����	/
	
������
�
�	��	&���	�%	��
	&�������	&���
��;��

�
�
�

Page 7



#��'	 ��
	 ��/��
�	 ���	 /
���	 ���
�	 ��	 �
�
���
	 ���������	 ��	 ��
	 ���
%	
)*
�����
	 ��	 ����	 �%%	 ��
	 �����	 �����
��	 ���
	 ��	 ��
�	 �%	 ��
	
����
�������	�
������
	��%���������	�

			
!��

�	:	
		

#3'	 ����	��
	�����	����	�%	��
	��������	&��&��
�	/�	
��	9��
��	��	������	
��
	�%%����/�����	����
���	�
�	���	��	��
	<�����
	�����
��	���
	���������	
�
������	#�

	#G'	/
���';		
		

#5'	 ��
	�
����
�	�
�����	�%	��
	���%�	�����	�����
��	���
	�
�	���	��	
!&&
���*	�;	
		

#?'	
		

��	�
�
���
	��
	�&&�����	�%	��
	�����	�����
��	���
	%��	��
	
������
�
��	�%	 ���
	+�
���
��	�
����
�	��	��
	���
%	)*
�����
�	��	
��
	&
����	��������
�	��	���	��	���	�/�
��
	��	������������	����	
���	
&����
�	�������C�	�
��	<%%��
�	��	��
	�����
����&	���1
��	)*
�����
	
#$
���	������	��������	$
&���	)*
�����
	$��
����	%��	)�������
���	
)������	���	������
	���	+��/��	��������	)�������
��	
����������
�';	
	

#G'	
		

��	%�������	���%���	��	$
%��	����	��
	�������	��	�������
�	��	�

����	���	
����
	�%	 ��
	����	�%	 ����	&��1
��	��
�	 ��
	 ��%
���
	�%	 ��
	��0	 ���������	
+�
	����	 �
�������	 �
���������	 ��
�����	 ������
�	 ��	 ��
	 �����	 �����
��	
���
	 �
�
��
	 ����	 
������
�	 ��	 ��	 3=2�����	 �
���	 ���	 �	 %��
���	

*�����
	 ���
	 )���	���
�
��	 ��	 3�46�	 0�	 ��	 �
����
��
�	 ����	 ����	
��
�����	/
	�����
�	%��	��	�
������	��
�	��
	����
	��%
	�%	��
	&��1
��	
�����	
7���
�	��	D??�������	%��	��
	&����
����&	��	�	����
;	D3@�������	
%��	��������	����	��������	D6	�������	%��	+��/��	�������	���	D35�������	
%��	$
���	������	��������	

	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 8



��������	
����
�������
��
������

��������
�

	
����
�������
��
������
�

������	��
�
����������	
��	�
��
����	��	��
	������	
����������	����	���
	������	
�����������	����
��	����������	�������	
����
�	�
��
��	���	�
��
��	
�������	

��	 ������	���	 ��
���	
	
!���	��	���
�����
"	����������	���
�	#�����	�$	��
	%�
���
�	���	��������	
����
�
��	
�����&�	!������	����
	#!�����	���
$	'(
�����
	���	)��
����	$��	)
�
��*�
��	���	
+
�
�
������&�	!���	�����
	#)��
����	$��	���*����
	��**���&�	�����
	�������
	
#)��
����	$��	���������	�
����
�&�	�����
�	���
�	#)��
����	�$	�
����
�	$��	������
�	���	
,����	�
�*�
&�	-��	.��
�	#!��������	)��
����	$��	)
�������	���	/��
�����
&�	)����	
)��$$��	#!��������	)��
����	$��	'�������	)
�
��*�
��&	���	)����	0����
�	#.
��	�$	
������
&�	
	
!*�����	$��	�1�
��
"	�����	2

�	#���
$	'(
�����
&�		
	
-�
	�

����	�����
�	��	3�44	*�	���	$�����
�	��	5�67	*��	
	
������������
�
���������������������������������������������
���
�������������������
�����
������
���
�����
� �������������!��"����������#��������
�������������������������������
�����������������
������$��������������!�
	

645�	 �������	����������	����	���
	
-�
�
	�
�
	��	�
����������	�$	���
�
��	��	���������
	����	��
	���
	�$	�������	$���	
�����������	��	�
������	��	��
��	���
�	������
������	��	����	�

�����	
	

648�	 ��� 	�����
	
!��

�	����	��
	�����
�	�$	��
	�

����	�
��	��	69	�������	3466	��
	���$���
�	��	�	
����
��	�
�����	
	

647�	 ! ��	����������	"��� #������
	
-�
�
	�
�
	��	:�
������	$���	��
	*�1���	$��	����	�

�����	
	

64;�	 �"���$�� �%��	�# ���������
	
-�
�
	���	��	�����<�	���
��	1����
���		
	

64=�	 �&��&��'�������� 	��(�����%����	�#�������� 	��(������	�)�
�������! ��	�����
	
-�
	�����
�	�
*���	�$	��
	!��������	���
$	'(
�����
	��	��
	%�
���
�	���	��������	

����
�
��	������	��	��
��	:����
���	��������	�
*���	���	��1����
��	�
��
����	��
	

Page 9



*
�$������
	�$	��
	%�
���
�	���	��������	
����
�
��	�����	$��	��
	�
����	
:����
�	�$	3464>66�	�����*�������	��
	�

�����	�$	33	�
*�
�1
��	;	%���1
��	3=	
%���1
�	���	38	0��
�1
��	3464�	
	
-�
	�����	�
����
�	����������	���
�	#�����	�$	��
	%�
���
�	���	��������	

����
�
��	�����&	��	��
	�

�����		����������	���
�	*�
�
��
�	��
	�
*���	���	�
	
�*���
�	��
	��1��
�	��	��
	*����
��	���
	���	���������
�	���
	�$	��
	����	
���
����
��		
	
.
	�������
�	����	?	
	

#�&	 ��
	����	�$	��
	%�
���
�	���	��������	
����
�
��	�����	���	
1

�	�������
�	1�	��
	1���
�	���	���*����
	*���	��������@	
		

#1&	 �
	���	���$��
��	����	��
	��������	����	*�������
	���
�	
����
	��	��
	�
�������	���
�@			
		

#�&	
		

����	���	��
	$����	:����
���	�
*���	��	�	�
�	$������	�����	1
��
�	
�
��������
�	��
	����
�
�
���	���	$����������	����	�$	��
	
%�
���
�	���	��������	
����
�
��	�����@		
			

#�&	 �
����
�	���
	�$	��
	����	���
����
�	1�	��
	��
���
�	���	
��������	*��
��	?	
	
A	 ��
	������
�	���	���������
�	%�
���
�	���	��������	

���
�	���	�
���	�1���	��
	������1���
�	��	��������	
!����
@	
	

A	 ��
	������
�	���	,����	�
�*�
	%�
���
�	���	��������	
���
�	���	
���1����
�	�	����	���	$�����	����*	��	����	��	
�����	���
��	���	��
	��������	�
*���	�����	1
	��1����
�	
��	��1��
�	$��	������
�������	�������@	
	

A	 ��
	%�
���
�	���	��������	
����
�
��	�����	���	
������
�
�	�	����	$��	������@	
	

A	 ��
	/�����	���	����*
����	%�
���
�	���	��������	���
�	
���	�
��
�
�	���������	
�
���	���	����	������
�@		
	

A	 ��
	 .
����	 ���	 
��1
���	 %�
���
�	 ���	 ��������	 ���
�	
���	 ��1����
�	 �	 �
�*���
	 ��	 �	 *
������	 �1���	 ���
�<�	
�
����	���
�	

		
649�	 # �%�	������������	���������� 	��(������	�������#���
�	6	B	63&�

	
-�
	�
*���	�$	��
	%�
���
�	���	��������	
����
�
��	�����	��	��
	����
�	���	
���*����
	����	��������	3466	���	��1����
�	���
��
�	����	�����
	C7	�$	��
	%�
���
�	
���	��������	
����
�
��	������	
	

Page 10



����������	���
�	#�����	�$	��
	%�
���
�	���	��������	
����
�
��	�����&	
*�
�
��
�	��
	�
*���	���	�����
�	��1��
�	

�1
��	����	B	
		

#�&	 ��
	%�
���
�	���	��������	
����
�
��	�����	���	�
�	����	
��
	�������<�	*����
��	��	��
	�����	�����
���	�����
����*	
������	*����	��	��
	�

�����	�$	��
	�����	��	�������	3466@		
		

#1&	 ��	���	�������
��
�	1�	��
	
����
�
��	�����	���	��
	
�����
���	*����
��	����	��
�
	���	�	�

�	��	$����	��	�	�����
�	
���1
�	�$	*�������
�@		
		

#�&	
		

��
	*
�$������
	����
��	������	�
$�
��	��
	����	�������<�	���	
$��	
(�
��
��
@		
	

#�&	
		

��
�
	���	��	�������
��
�
��	�$	��
	�

�	$��	�	1�����
�	
1���
�@	
	

#
&	 ��
	 
����
�
��	 �����	 �
�
	 ����
��
�	 ��	 ��
	 ����	 �$	
*����
����*	$�������		

		
D�	�����������	����������	���
�	�����
�	��1��
�	���	��
	���*����
	
����
�
��	
-
��	$��	��
��	������1������	���	����	�����
�	��
	)
��������	��**���	-
��	$��	��
��	
��**���	������	����	��������	�
��
��	
	
-�
	�����	�
�*���
�	���	����	�����
�	��
	)
��������	��**���	-
��	$��	��
��	
��**����		��
	�
����
�	��
	���*�
�
����
	�
�*���
	$���	��
	%�
���
�	���	
��������	
����
�
��	�����	���	�����
�	��
�	$��	��
��	�����		
	
%�	1
���$	�$	��1��
��	��
	1������	�
����
�	��
	�
����
��������	���	�������
�	����	
?	
		

#$&	 ��1��
�	�
�
	��**�	��	������
	��������	��	��**������	��
	*�����	
���	*
�$������
	*���
��	��
�
	��������	���	������	����
@		
		

#�&	 ��
	
(������	���	*��*��
�	':������	D�*���	!��
���
���	��	��
	
1���
�	���	���	 ��*�
�
�������	�
�
	*��*��������
	���	1
����	
���������	 �
:���
�
���	���	��1��
�	���	���	����	 ��	������	 ��	
$����
�	��*���	���
���
���	��	*��*��
��			

	
��1��
�<�	�
�*���
	��	��
	����
�	���	���*����
	����	3466	��������	
�
����
��������	���	��1����
��					
				
!��

�	��
	�
�*���
��	��	��1����
�	���	�**
��
�	��	��
�
	�����
��	��	��
	
��1��
�<�	$�����	�
�*���
	��	��
	�
����
��������	�$	��
	%�
���
�	���	��������	

����
�
��	������	
	

64C�	 # �%�	������������	���������
	
-�
	)��
����	$��	���*����
	��**���	��1����
�	�	�����
�	�
*���	���*������	��
	
$��������	�����
���	B			

Page 11



	
A	 ���*����
	����	3466	?	68@	
A	 ���*����
	!��
�	
����
�
��	����	3466	?	67@		
A	 3466>63	+
�
��
	���	��*����	����
�	#�*���
	��	��
	D��������
	

����
�	�**���
�	��	68	)
�
�1
�	3464	#�����
	95	�
$
��&�	
	
-�
	�����	��������
�	��
	���*����
	����	3466	?	68	�����	�
�	���	��
	�������<�	
�����
���	���
�����	$��	3466	?	68	���	1
����	���	����
��
�	��
	*���	��	��
	
��1��
��	$��	�
$
����	��	��
	����	�������	$��	�**������		��
	�
*���
�	����	?	
	

#�&	 ��
	*���	$����
�	��	��
	������	$��	��
	����	���	$��	��
	��������	
��
	$���	����
�	*�������
�	�$	��
	�������	���	���	*����
��	���	�	
����
	�$	��**������	������
	�
����
�@	
		

#1&	 ��
	*���	��������
�	��
	�������<�	$��������	*�������	���	���	
����
	��	���
	
$$���
���
�	��	�	���
	�$	�
���
�	*�1���	

(*
������
@	
		

#�&	
		

��
	��*������
	�$	�����$����������	�����
	��	��*���
	�
����
�	
����	$
�
�	�
�����
�	���	�	��
�
	����������@	
	

#�&	 ��
	 *���	 ����	 ���������
�	 ��
	 *�1���	 1���
�	 �������������	
*����
����*	��*��	���	��
���
�	���	��������	$�����	

		
����������	����
�	#��1��
�	

�1
�	$��	������
�	���*
����	�
�*�
	���	/��
�����
&	
�
*���
�	?	
	

#
&	 ��	��
	�*���
�	���*����
	!��
�	
����
�
��	����	$��	�����	
��
		���
��1�
	���	1

�	�
���
�	��	��
	
��	�$	3467�	��
	��	��
	

$$
��	�$	��
	����
��	
�������	���������	-���	�����	1
	
�
��
�
�	������	��
	�
(�	��
��
	������@	
		

#$&	 ����	����	���	���
����	��	*�����
	�	1����
��	*���	$��	��
	
�������������	�����
��@	
	

#�&	 ����	��
	*���	������
�	��
	�������	���������	���
�	�����$
�	
�����
��	�����	�����	�
�*���	��	��
	�
�	���
���
��	��
���	
��	�
�������	���
	�������	��	���������
�	���	����	��**���
�		

�
�
���	�$	��
	�������<�	1���
����	�
���
��	*�����		D�	����	
����
�	���	��
	�������	���	������	$������	���1��	
�����
�
��@	
			

#�&	 ����	��$��������	��	��
	�����
�
��	�$	���
��	���	�
����
�	��	
��
	�
*����	���������	��
	*��������	�$	�	�
�	���*����
	*��*
���	
����1��
�	��
	�������	�����
����
	�����
���	���������	
���*�����
�	���*����
	*��*
���	$����	���	�
�	�
�
��*�
���	
������	��
	�����
	�����	%$	�������	$��	���*����
	��**���	���	
���*����
	���
�	$�������@		
	
	

Page 12



#�&	 ����	��
	�������	
����
	���	�	�����$�����	*���	�$	��
	�������<�	
*���$����	���	�
$
��
�	��	*������	�������	��
�
	��
�
	���	�	
1����	�

�	����
�	�
:������	�	�
�*�����	����
��
	�$	��
	��
	�$	
�
�*�����	����������@	
	

#E&	
		

����	��
	3466>63	+
�
��
	���	��*����	����
�	�*���
�	��
	
$������	�����������	��	��
	

����	-
��	���������	�����
��	
*�
�
��
�	��	��
	����	�������	��	;	)
�
�1
�	3464�	���	
�
����
�	1���	��
	�
�
��
	�����������	��	�	�
����	�$	��
	
)
�
�1
�	3464	�����	/��
���
��	�
���
�
��	
�������
�
����	���	�*���
�	��
	��*����	*�������
	$��������	
$������	������������	!�	�	�
����	�$	��
	�
���
�
��	��
�
	���	�	
�

�	��	�
�����	��
	��������	1���
�	�����*�����@	
	

#�&	 ������	��
	�
*���	������
�	�	1�����
�	1���
�	��	��
	����
(�	�$	
�
�����
�	������1�
�	���
	�
����
�	����	�����	�������
	������	
�
1�����	���	���	�
$��
�
��	��	��
	1���
�	*��*�����	�����	1
	
�
*���
�	��	��
	����	�������	��	39	�
1�����	3466@	
�	

#�&	 �**�����	���	������	$��	����
��
�	��	�������	�����
�������	$

�	
���	�����
�	*��*��
�	��	*���	�$	��
	1���
�	������
�������@	
	

#�&	 ����	��
	�
*���	*�����
�	��	�*���
	��	���	��
	�������	���	
�������
�	���	�
�
��
	���	��*����	�
�����
�	������	
�
*����
���	���	*�������	��
��	$��	3466>63	��	��*���
	
������
�	$��	�����	*
�*�
	���	���	$����	����
�	���	
���
�*���
�	��
	�������<�	���*����
	����	3466B68@	
	

#�&	 $��	��
	��*����	��������
�	��
�
	���	1

�	�����$�����	
�
��������	��	$������	��
��	����
�	��	���	���
���
��	
�
*����
����	���	��
�
	���	����	���
�������	��
�	$������	
���
���	*���	3466>63�	-�
	�������	���	�����	*�������	�	
�����$�����	��*����	���
���
��	���	����	�����	����
��
	��	�
���	
3463>65	?	3468>67	��	���
	$������	���
���	1
���
	������1�
�	
-�
	�
���
�	

����	-
��	��*����	��������
	���	��1����
�	
$��	�**�����@	
	

#�&	 ��
	-�
�����	
����
�
��	�����
��	$��	3466>63	���	��1E
��	��	
��������	1�	��
	!����	�������

	��	36	�������	3466�	
���������	��
	�
�������	��	��
	��*����	*�������
�	��
�
	���	�	
�

�	��	�
���
	��
	*���
�����	����������	��	������
�	��	��
	
�
*����		

	
����������	����
�	����
��
�	��
	���*����
	!��
�	
����
�
��	����	���	�
�
��
	
���	��*����	1���
�	��	��
	��1��
��	$��	�
$
����	��	��
	����	�������	$��	�**�����	
	
D�	�
�*���
	��	:�
������	$���	��1��
�	

�1
���	��1��
�	���	�����
�	����	?		
	

#*&	 ��
	�
���
��	*����	$��	�����	������	���
	�
�
	��	����
�	���	
���
������
	�*�����	�
�
	��	*���
	��	��
	
�
��	�$	���**��
@	

Page 13



		
#:&	 ������	*��*�����	�������	��	������
�<�	�
����
��	�	�

��	

��������	���	1

�	���
����
�	��	��
	����
�	�$	��
	*���
���	
��������	1�	���������	���	$����	���	1

�	��������
�	��	��
	
��*���	�$	*��*�����	��	����
��1�
	$�����
��		-�
	�
����
	���	
*��*�����	��	��	������	��$$
�
����	����
�	����	�
���
	�
����
�	
���	��
	
����	���
��
�����	�����	�����	1
	����
�
�	��	����
��1�
	
����*�@							
		

#�&	
		

�	�����$�����	������	�$	$������	���	1

�	�
�
��
�	��	��
	�
����	
���������	$��	������	���
	���	��
	�$$��
��	�
�
	��	����������	��	
�
���
	��	���

�
��	��	���	����	���
�	�����	1
	�������
�	
1
��

�	��
	���������
��		-�
	���

�
��	$��	3464>66	�����	1
	
1������	��	��1��
�	�������	���	�$$��
��	�
�
	��	����������	��	
��
	$������	$��	3466>63	���	3463>65@	
	

#�&	
		

��������	��*����	$������	$��	�����*���	���
�
�	���	1

�	����	
��
	����	���	�����	������	��	�
���
�	��
	������	��
����	-�
	����	
���	��
	�$	��
	$
�	��	���
	�

�	�����$�����	���
���
��	��	
��*���
�
���	��	��
	��$����������
	����	����	*����
���	�	1��	
���	1
���	*�
*��
�	$��	�����	��������1�
	�����*���	$������@		
	

#�&	 
�
��	
$$���	���	1

�	���
	��	
����
	����	��$
��������	���	
���	1

�	���*�����
�	������	��
	1���
�	*���
��@		����������	

��	 ������	������	�
�
����	�*
��	���
	����	������	����
���		

(*�
��
�	�
�	������	��	��
�	$��	��
��	�������
��	��	��
��	
����@	
	

#�&	 ��
�
	���	1

�	�	�����$�����	���
���
��	����	��1����
��	$��	

(��*�
	��	-��1����
	.���	������	���	��	!�1��<��		!	�
��
�	
���	�������	��	���
����������	�*
����	������	����
	���	
���$$���	�
�
��	������	��
	�����
�
���	%$$��
��	�
�
	����	��	
����������	����	���
�	���������
�	��	��
	*
�������	��	������
�	
��*������	�
��������	���	������1�����	�$	�
����
�	������	��
	
�����		-�
�
	�
�
	��	*��*�����	��	����
	��1����
�	�
(�	�
���	
-�
	�����	
(*�
��
�	�
�	������	��	����������	���������	
#��1��
�	

�1
�	$��	���������	�
����
�	#��$
�	���	������
�	
���������
�	���	�
����
	������
	���	�*���&	���	�����
	
�������
�		-�
	�$$��
��	���
�����	��	������
�	��
��
�	��	
!�1��<�	�����	1
	��1����
�	$��	��	!1
�����1�
	�����@	
	

#�&	 
(�
��
��	*����
��	���	1

�	���
	��	��
	��$
	�
���
	���	��
	
�����	�
�
	����
����	��	����
��		�����	�
��
��	���	1

�	
�
�
��
�	$��	��
	�
����
	�����
�
��	��������	���	��
	*�
$
��
�	
1���
�	�����	1
	�������
�	��	
����	3466@	
	

#�&	 ��
	��������	-�������
	�
����
	��	��
	��$
�	���������
�	
)
*����
��	�����	1
	�
�$	$������	���	��
	����	�������	���	��	
����������	����	��
	�
����	���������	$��	$�������	��	��
	1���
��	
��
�	�$	��
	�
����
@	

Page 14



	
#(&	 ��
	�
�������	�$	�����	$������	��	��
	��$
�	���������
�	��
��	

�����	��*���	��	���
����	�1��
	���	�
(���	�������	�
����
��		
D��
���
��	���	1
���	������	$���	*����
��	���	�$$��
��	�
�
	
�������	��	��
	����	
$$���
��	��
	�$	������	���	����	�$	$������	��
	
��*	��	$�������		-�
	*��*�����	������
�	�	�
�������	��	��
	1���	
�$$��
@				
	

#�&	 ��������	1����	����
	����
�����	�����
�	�
�
	1
���	����
��
��		
$

�	���	���	1

�	����
�	$��	���

	�
���	���	����
	��	1
�
$���	
�����	�
�
��
	��
	�
����
	$�

	�$	�����
@	
	

#F&	 ��	$����	���
	�
����
�	�
�
	�$$
��
�	1�	��
�
	*��*�����@	
	

#��&	 ��
	�����$
�	�$	*
�$������
	���	*�����	���$$	���	1
���		
�����
�	1�	!��������	���
$	'(
�����
�	������	���	�
*����
���	
���	�$$��
��	���	

�1
��	�
�
	���$��
��	����	��
	�����
�	
�����	�
���
�	�������	���	��*���
	��
	�
����
@	
	

#11&	 ����
���	 �1���	 ��
	 *��*�����	 ����
����	 ����
��1�
	 *
�*�
	
�
�
	 �
E
��
�	 ���	 $����
��	 ��	 ��
	 1���
�	 *��*������	 �����	 1
	
�
��������
��	 	!	����	1��
�	�**�����	���	1

�	���*�
�	���	
*��*�����	 ���	 1

�	 ������
�
�	 ���
�	 
:������	 ��*���	
���
���
���	���	��
	��*���	�$	�
�������	�����	1
	�
*�	���
�	
�
��
��		

	
-�
	�����	�������
�	����	��
	*��*�����	�����	�
��	����	��
	����	�������	�����	1
	
�
����
��
�	��	$�

F
	��
	�������	��(	$��	��
	������	�
���				
	
!��

�	����	?	
		

#6&	 �*�+*������,�������)�-�
��
	���*����
	����	��	+
����
��
�	��	��
	����	�������	$��	
���*�����	��1E
��	��	�����	��
���
���	���	
��������	�
����	
�����
�	1
���	�
�
���
�	��	��
	���
$	'(
�����
	���	��
	
�
�
����	*���$����	����
�@	
		

#3&	 �*�+*���������������.�/�����,�������)�0�
��
	���*����
	!��
�	
����
�
��	����	��	+
����
��
�	��	��
	
����	�������	$��	���*�����	��1E
��	��	�����	��
���
���	���	

��������	�
����	�����
�	1
���	�
�
���
�	��	��
	)��
����	$��	
���*����
	��**���	���	��
	�
�
����	*���$����	����
�@	
		

		 ����1�����2��
��������+���,�#
�.�����+*���
	

#5&	
	

��
	*��*��
�	�
�	�
�
��
	1���
�	�
:���
�
��	�$	G349�35=�	
$��	3466>63	���	$��
	�
��	��*����	��������
	#3464>66	?	
3468>67&	�$	G6C3�;57�	��	+
����
��
�	��	��
	����	�������	
��	39	�
1�����	3466�	��1E
��	��	���	$����	��
���
���@	
�

Page 15



#8&	 ����
��
�	��	$

�	���	�����
�	��	������
�	��	!**
���(	�	��	��
	
�
*�������
	+
����
��
�	��	��
	����	�������	$��	�**�����@	
�

#7&	 ��
	�
���
�	����
�����	D���������	������
�	��	!**
���(	'���	��
	
�
*������
	+
����
��
�	��	��
	����	�������	$��	�**������	
	

	
664�	 3���	������������������������������	�)�	"����! ��	�����

	
-�
	���*����
	
����
�
��	-
��	��1����
�	�	�����
�	�
*���	���������	��
	
*
�$������
	���	����������	*�������	�$	��
	����	�������	��	��	��
	
��	�$	��
	�����	
:����
��	
		
����������	����
�	#��1��
�	

�1
�	$��	������
�	���*
����	�
�*�
	���	/��
�����
&	
*�
�
��
�	��
	�
*���	��	��	$��	��	$�����
	���	����
��
��	���	���������
�	?	
	

A	 ��
	�

�	$��	�	1�����
�	1���
�	��	�
��	
��@		
A	 ��
	���
��	�
�
��
	*�������@	
A	 ��
	�
�	�����	��	��
	�
���
��	*����@	
A	 ��
	���
��	*�������	��	��
	��*����	*�������
	���	*��*�����	$��	

��
	���������	�$	���	����������	���
�
�@	
A	 ��
	���
��	*�������	��	��
�����	�����
�
��@	
A	 ����	$��������	�	��(	���*
������	���
	����
�	���	1

�	�����	��	

��
	���
�����	�$	��
	�������	�
������	��	���$$	��������
�@	
A	 *��*��
�	���
�
���@	
A	 ����	 ��
	 �������	 ���	 ���	 �������	 ������	 ������	 ���	 ��
	

�
���
�
���		
	
����������	���	�
��
�	#��1��
�	

�1
�	$��	�
�$������
	���	-����$��������&	
*�
�
��
�	��
	�
*���	��	��	$��	��	*
�$������
	����������	���	����
��
�	���	
�
*���
�	��	��
	����
��	*�������	������	
���	�
*����
���	
	
-�
	�����	�����
�	���	��
	$�����
	�$$��
��	���	)��
�����	$��	��
��	����	��	��
	1���
�	
���	�
����
�	��
	
����	������
������	����	�
���		��
	����	�����
�	���	��
	��1��
�	


�1
��	$��	��
��	�����				
				
!��

�	?	
		

#6&	 ����	��
	)��
�����	����
��	��
	�
�������	�����$���	��	3464>66@	
		

#3&	 ����	��
	���
��	3464>66	��*����	$��
����	�$	G==�87=�	��	���
�	
���	��
	����	�������	��	+
����
��
�	��	�**���
	����	��
	
$��������	�
�	���
�
�	#������
�	��	��
	���
��	$��
����&	��
	
���
�	��	��
	*�������
	$��	3464>66	B	
	
#�&	 	�
������$$	��$H	
�������
����	�����	G4�474�@	

	
#1&	 	
���
�	
�
�������	�
$��1����
��	#��E�����	��	$�����	��	

66>63&	G4�437�@	
	

Page 16



#5&	
		

��
	�
������
�
��	�$	��
	 
����	
���	�
�
�
��	�
�
��
�	1�	�	
�����$
�	1���	$���	��
	�
�
��
	���
��	��	���
	�
�
��
�	��������	
G4�4=6��	��	�

�	��
	�����	�$	
��
�����	��*���
�
��	�����	��	
3464>66@	
	

#8&	 ��
	1���
�	���
�
���	��	$������	B	
	
A	 �
����������	�$	�
�
��*�
��	1���
�	�������	������	�
����
	

�
���	B	G8;;�444@	
	

A	 �
*�������	�$	���
$	'(
�����
	�
*����
����	�����
�
��	
$���	������	���	�
�$������
	I���	$��	�
*������	*��*��
�	B	
G763�444@	
	

A	 �����$
�	�$	 1���
�	 $��	���������	��**���	/����	 ���
�
	
$���	���*����
	��
��	��	���*����
	��**���	B	G644�444	

	
666�	 �"�����������(� �%������������������)���-�)�����	���� ���	�����

���� �	�	������
	
-�
	)��
����	�$	�
����
�	$��	������
�	���	,����	�
�*�
	��1����
�	�	�����
�	�
*���	��	
��
	����������	�����
��	$��	��
	��������	������
�	���	,����	�
�*�
	����	3466	?	
3468	�����	$����
�	��	���	��
	����	��������	*����
��	���	��
���
�	����	����	
���
��
�	��	�
���
�	��
	*�������
�	�*
��$������	��	�
������	��	������
��	�����	*
�*�
	���	
$�����
��	
	
-�
	�
*���	B		
			

#�&	 ������
�	��
	�
�	����
��
�	����	��
	������
�	���	,����	
�
�*�
<�	-����	*����
��	���	����
�
�	�������	�������	
���
��
�@			
		

#1&	 �������
�	����	��
	������
�	���	,����	�
�*�
<�	-����	�
����
�	
�	�����	*�������	$��	��
	����	���	��
	�������	���	��
	*��*��
�	
*���	�����	1
	�	�
�	�
���
��	*���	��	����
�
	��
	����<�	$���	
*�������
�@	
		

#�&	
		

�����
�	����	�	�
����
�	���
���
��	�$	������
�	���	�����	
*
�*�
<�	�

��	���	���*�
�
�	��	�
*�
�1
�	3464	���	��
	
��
��	�$	������
�	���	$�����
�	��	��
	����	���	1

�	�����*����
�	
����	��
	����������	�����
��@	
		

#�&	
		

�
����
�	��
	*�������
�	���

�	1�	��
	��������	������
�	���	
,����	�
�*�
<�	-����	�����	��	64	)
�
�1
�	3464@	
		

#
&	 �������
�	�����	���
�	
���	*��������	�
����
�	�
���
��	*����	
�����	1
	�
�
��*
��		������	���	��
	�������������	���
������	
������	��
���
��		������������	��	���	�
�
��*�
��	�$	��
	
�
���
��	*����	�����	���
	*���
	������	��
	$����	:����
�	�$	3466@	

	

Page 17



#$&	 ��$���
�	

�1
��	����	��
	$����	������
�	���	,����	�
�*�
	
����	3466B3468	�����		������
	��
	��������
�	�
���
��	*����	
���	�����	1
	���*�
�
�	1�	!*���	3466�	

		
��1��
�	

�1
��	�
�
	�����
�	����	����	�������	�����	1
	������
�	��	��
	
������������	*���
���	
	
!��

�	?	
		

#6&	 ����	������	��	��	��	����
�	�	���������	�
:���
�
��	$��	�����	��
��	
��	���
	�	������
�<�	-�����	��
	������
�	���	,����	�
�*�
<�	
����	��	+
����
��
�	��	��
	����	�������	$��	���������	���
�	
�����	�����
	�����	���	�����
��
�	��	��
	����
��	�
��
�	�$	��
	
������������@	
		

#3&	 ��
	*�������
�	$��	��
	��������	������
�	���	,����	�
�*�
<�	
����	3466B3468�	��	
��1�
	������������	��	���
	*���
	������	
�
1�����	���	
����	3466@	
		

#5&	
		

����	������������	����	1
	���
����
�	����	�
�
����	����
����
��	
������	��
	�����	���������	���
�	3434	��
�
	����*��	��
	*�����
	
�
�����	�
�	*����
�	��
���
�	���������	����	0.�	���������	
)
���	���	��������	�����
	���	��
	���������	���	���������	
�
�����	��	�
��	��	����	������
��	�����	*
�*�
	���	$�����
��		

	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 18



��
��
��
��
	

���
	

��
�

��	
��
��
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
�	
�

��
���
�	
��
��
��
�	

�

��
���
�	
��

�
�
�
��
��
���
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	�
�	


��
��
��
		

��
��
	�
	�
�	�
�	

�
��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

	

��

�
�

��

�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�
��
�

��
��
	�
��
	�
��
�

��
�	
��
�	
��
��
�

	

 
��
���
!	�
�	
�	
"�
��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
�!	

��
��
��
	

��
��
��
��
�	
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
�	

��
�	

�
��
��
��
�	
��
��
	�

�
��
��
�	

��
�

��
�	
��
	��
��
��
	�
��
��
	

	

#
��
��
		



��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
	

$

�
��
��
	

��
��
	

�
��
�

%
��
��
	�

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

	�
��


	
��

�	
��

��
��

��
���

�	
��

�

	


��
	�
��
	�
��
��
	

��
&�
��
��
�!
	�
��
	$
&�
�&
��
'
	�
��
	

�

��
���
�	
(
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
�	
��
	

��
&�
�	
��
	�
&�
��
��
��
	�
��
�)
	�
��
��
��
�	

��
��
��
	�
�	
��
&�
�&
��
	�
�	
��
�	
��
��
��
��
	

��
��
��
��
���
	�
�	
��
��
��
	�
	�
��
�	

"�
��
��
	�
�	
��
��
��

�
	��
	�
��
�&
��
�	
��
	

��
��
��
	�
��
&�

�
�)	

	

#
��
��
	'
���
	$
&�
�&
��
'
	�
��
	�

�
��
��
�	
(
��
��
��
��
�	�
��
��
	

��
&�
��
	�
	�
��
�	
��
	�

�
��
��
���
��
	�
��
�&
��
�	
��

�
���
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
�	
��
�	
��
��
��
	�
��
&�

�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
��
	�
��
	

��
�&
���
��
�	

*�
�	
+
��
���
	�
��
	

#
��
�
	�
��
��
�)
		
$
��
��
��
	

Minute Item 108

Page 19



��
��
��
��
	

���
	

��
�

��	
��
��
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
�	
�

��
���
�	
��
��
��
�	

�

��
���
�	
��

�
�
�
��
��
���
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	�
�	


��
��
��
		

��
��
	�
	�
�	�
�	

� �
��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

	

��

�
�

��

�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�
��
�

%
��
��
	�
��
�&
��
�	
��
��
�	
'
���
	�
��
��
�	

��
	�
	�

��
��

	

��

��
���

��
�


��
�	

��
�


	

��

��
!	�
��
��
���
�	
��
��
��
	�
�	

��
��
��
�,
��
	�
�	
��
��
��
	�
��
	��
��

�
	

��
	��
��
&�
��
��
�!	
��
��
��
��
��
	�
��
	


�
�
�
��
���
��
)	�
��
�	
��
��
��
	��

�
��
�	

��
��
	�
��
	�
���
��
��
���
�	�
�
��

�
	�
�	

��
��
�	
��
��
��
	'
���
��
	�
�

�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
�	
��
�	


�
�
��
��
�&
�	
��
��

�
	�
�	
��
��
�	
'
��
	

��
�	
��
��

�
��
	�
�	
�
��
�	
��
��
	�
��
	


�
��
��
)		
#



��
��
	�
��
��
�	
��
	�
�,
��
	

��
	�
��
��
��
,�
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
���
�	
��
	

��

�
�
�	
��
&�
��)
	

	

�
��
��
��
�	
-.
��
���
�	
*�
��

�
	#
��
��
��
��
��
	/-
*#
�0
	�
�&
�	
��
��
	

��
��
��
�,
��
	�
�	
��
�	
��
��
��
	�
��
	�
	

��
�
���
��
�	
��
&�
�	
��
	

��
��
��
�,
�	
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
�
��
��
!	�
�	
��
.�
��
��
!	�
�	
��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
���
�	
��
��
��
	�
�	�
���
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
	�
�	�
��
	

��
��
�)	
	$
��
	-
*#
�	
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
	�
��
�

��
	�
��
��
�	

��
�	
��
��
��
��
�	
��
.�
��
��
��
��
	/�
�	
��
��
��
	��
�.
��
���
��
�0
	�
��
	

�1
��
��
��
�	
��
�	
��
�

��
�	
��
�	
��
��
��
�	
��	
��
�	

�
��
��
��
��
	

��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��
)	

#
��	
��
��&
��
�	
��
��
	

��
��
�	

(
���
��
��
��
	�
�	

��
	�
��
	�
��
	��
	

��
��&
��
�	
��
��
�	

�
��
�

�
��

��
���

��
�

��
��

��
��

�

�

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

�

��
	

��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
�	
��
�	


��
�

��2
�	

3��
�
���
	�
��
��
2	�
��
��
�	
��
��
	�
��
�	
��
	

��
�	
��
��
��
�
��

�
	�
��
��
��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
	��
	�
��
�
���
��
	�
�	
��
�	

$
&�
�&
��
'
	�
��
	�

�
��
��
�	

(
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
�)
	

	

#
��
��
	

*�
�	
+
��
���
		�
��
	

#
��
�
	�
��
��
�	

"�
��
���
	��
	


�
��
��
��
���
�	

'
���
	

(
�	

(
��

�
	�
��
�	

Page 20



��
��
��
��
	

���
	

��
�

��	
��
��
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
�	
�

��
���
�	
��
��
��
�	

�

��
���
�	
��

�
�
�
��
��
���
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	�
�	


��
��
��
		

��
��
	4
	�
�	�
�	

� �
��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

	

��

�
�

��

�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�
��
�

��
�	

�
��


�
��

	�
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�
��

�	
��
��
���
�	
��
	�
�'
	

��
�	


��
�

��	

�
���

�
�	
��
�	
�
��
��
	

�'
��
	�
�	
��	
��
��
	�
	&
��
��
��
	�
�	

��
��

�
�	
��
��
��
	�
�	
��
�	
��
�"
�

�	
��
	

��
��
��
��
���
�	
�

��
���
�	
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
�	
��
�&
�

��
	�

�
��
��
�	
��
��
�)	

$
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
�	
��
	

��
�	


�
���

�
��
�	
��
	�
��
	�
��
	��
	�
��
	



��
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
	�
��
&�

�
�	

��
��
��
	�
��
�&
��
�	
��
��
	�
��
��
�	
��
	

��

�
��
��
)		

�

��
�	


��
�

��2
�	
��
��
��
�
��

�
	��
	

��
��

�
��
�	
��

�
�
�	
'
���
	


�
��
��
��
	�
�	
��
	�
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
�	
��
�	
.�
��
��
��
�	

��
��
��
�
��

�
	�
��
	��
��
�

�	
�
��
���
��
��
	�
��
��
�)	
	�
��
���
��
�	

��
�	


��
�

��2
�	
��
��&
��
�	
��
	�
��	
��
��
��
	�
��
�&
��
�	
��
��
�	
'
���
	

��
	3�
��
���

�
���
��
��
2	&
��
	�
��
	.
��
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��

�
	�
��
	

���
��

�
	�
��
���
��
��
	�
��
��
�)	
	�
��
��
	.
��
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
	

'
���
	�
��
��
�	
��
�	
��
��
�	
��
	�

�
��
��
���
	�
��
��
��
�	
��
	��

�
�
�	


�
���

�
��
�)
	

#
��
�
	�
��
��
�	

$
��
��
��
	

�
��
�

��
��
	�
��
	$
&�
�&
��
'
	�
��
	�

�
��
��
�	

(
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
�	
��

�
�&
�	
�	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
��
�	
��
	�
��
	

�
��

��

� 

��
��

�
�


��
��

��
�

��
	�


�

	


�
	


��
�!
	�
��
��
�	
��
�

��
�	
��
	

��
�!
	�
��
��
	�
��
��
��
!	�
��
	3�
��
�	�
�	

��
��
��
��
2)	
��
�	
��
��
�	
'
���
	

�
��
���
�!
	�
��
��
��
	�
��
	.
��
��
��
��
	

��
��
��
�
��

�
	�
��
	��
��
�

�	

�
��
���
��
��
	�
��
��
��
!	�
��
��
��
	'
��
,	

��
��
��
	�
��
��
	�
��
"�

�
�	
'
��

�
	

�.
��
��
	�
�	
56
�
	�
�&
��
��
	�
&�
�	
��
�	

��
1�
	4
	�
��
��
)	

#
��
��
		

#
��
�
	�
��
��
�	

7�
��
	�
��
�	

Page 21



��
��
��
��
	

���
	

��
�

��	
��
��
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
�	
�

��
���
�	
��
��
��
�	

�

��
���
�	
��

�
�
�
��
��
���
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	�
�	


��
��
��
		

��
��
	6
	�
�	�
�	

� �
��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

	

��

�
�

��

�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�
��
�

��
��
	�
�&
��
��
�

�	
��
�	
�

��
���
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
�	
��
�'
��
�	

��
�	
�

��
���
�	
(
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
�	

��
�	
��
�	


��
��
��
	�
��
	�
��
	



��
��
��
��
	(
��
��
��
��
�	�
��
�
	

'
���
	�
��
��
�	
��
	�
��
	


�

��


	

�

�	

�

��
��

�	
��

��
�



	
��

�

��

��
��

�
��

��
��

	�
��

!
�
��

�	
�	

��
��

��
 �


�
��

��
�

�
�"
	

#
	�
�&
��
'
	�
�	

��
���
�	�
��
��
��
�
�	
��
��
��
��
��
��
	��
	�
�	
��
	


�
��
��
�	
��
�!	
��

�
��
��
�	
���
��
��
	�
�	
��
&�
��
��

�
	

��
��
��
��
��
��
!	�
��
	�
�

��
��
�	
��
	�
��
��
���
��
���
�	
��
	

�

��
�
��
	�
��
��
	�
�	
��
��

�
��
�	
��
	�
&�
���
��
�	
��
��
��

�
�)	
	

*�
&�
�&
��
��
�	
��
	�

�
��
��
�	
'
���
	�
�	
��

�
��
��
	'
���
��
	�
��
�	

��
&�
�'
)		
	

#
��
��
��
	�
��
��
	
7�
��
	�
��
�	

�
�	
�

��
��
	�

��
�	

�

��


�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

#$
�%

�&
�'

��
��	

��
��

�


	

��
�


�
��

��
�

�
�	
��
	�
��
��
��
�	
��
�	

��
��	
��
��
��
	�
��
	�
�	
��
��
	�
�	�
��
	

��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
	�
��
���
�	
��
�

��
�)	

	

��
��	
��	
��
�	

�
��
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
!	�
�&
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
	

��

�
��
��
��
�	
��
��
�	

�
��
��
�	�
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
�
��
��
!	�
��
	

��
�	
��
��
��
��

�
	�
�	�
��
��
��
��
��
	�
	�
��
���
��

!	�
��
	��
��
��
	


�
��
��
�	�
��
��
��
�
�	



(
�	

8
9#
	

�
�

�

��
��
	�
	�
��
��
��
�	�
��
	�
	�

�
��

��
��

��
	�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

�
��


	
��

��
��

��
��

�	
��

��
��

��

�
	��
	�
�&
��
��
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
��
�	
"�
��
���
	'
���
	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
�	

	

#
��
��
�	
��
��
	'
��
,	
'
���
	�
�	
��
,�
�	
��
�'
��
�	
��
	�
��
�	

��

�
�
�
��
��
���
�)
	�
��
�	
'
��
��
	�
��
�	
��
	��
��
	�
��
�	
��
	�
��
	

��
�

��
���
��
	'
���
	:
��
	�
��
��
��
�	
'
���
	�
��	
��
��
��
��
	��
��
��
�	


�
��
��
��
���
��
	�
��
��
	

��
���
��
��
)	

*�
�	
+
��
���
	

#
��
��	
��
��
	

Page 22



��
��
��
��
	

���
	

��
�

��	
��
��
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
�	
�

��
���
�	
��
��
��
�	

�

��
���
�	
��

�
�
�
��
��
���
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	�
�	


��
��
��
		

��
��
	;
	�
�	�
�	

� �
��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

	

��

�
�

��

�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�
��
�

��
��
	�
��
��
�	

�
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��	
��
&�
�	

��
	�
��
��
��
��
�	
��
�	

��
��


�
��

��
��

	�
��

���
��

�	
��

��
��

��
	�

��
�

�
��

	�
��

��
��


�
��

��
	�

��
	�

��
�

��




��
	�

��
��

��
�

�
��


	
��

��
��

��
��

�	
��

��
��

��

�
	

��
��
��
	�
�	

��
�	
��
��
��
	�
�	:
�

��
	#
��
�	

#
��
��
�
��
�	
��
��
��
�
��

�
	�
�'
��
�	

+
��
��
)	

��
�"
�

�	
��
	:
��
	-
1�

�
��&
�	
��
�

��
���
��
	�
<	
7�
��
��
�	
��
��
	

��
�	
��
�	
��
��
�	
��
	�
��
	�
��
� 	=
��
��
��
�	
��
��
)		
#
�	
��
��
��
	


�
�	
��
	�
��
&�
��
�	
��
	$
&�
�&
��
'
	�
��
	�

�
��
��
�	

(
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
�)
	

*�
�	
+
��
���
	

(
��

�
	�
��
�	

�
��
�
�
*�
	�
�,
��
�	

��
�


��
��

	�
�	

��
��

��
	�

��
�

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

	!
	�
	�
��,
	

��
��
��
��	
��
	�
��
��
���
�	�
��
�	
��
	


�
��

�
��
	'
���
��
	�
��
	

��
�

��	
��
	

��
��&
��
	��
�	

�
��
��
	�
��
��
�	
��
��
��
	

��
	�
��
��
��
,�
�)
	

#
��
��
	



(
�	

��
#
	

�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
��
�

��
��
	�
��
	#
��
���
��
�	

�
��
�

��
��
	�
��
��
�	
��
��
��
	�
��
�	

��

�

�	

�

��
��

��
��

�

��

�

��

�

�


��
	

'
��

�
	�
���

�
�	
��
��
��
	/�
��
	�
1�
�
��
�	

��
��
��
2	�
��
	

��
��
��
�2
�	
��

�
��
	

��
�0
	

��
��
��
	��

�
��
�	
��
��
���
�

�	
��
	�
��
�	
�	

��
�

��
��
��
	�
��
	��
	�
��
�
�	
��
	�

�
��
�	

��
�
��
��
	�
�	�
��
��
�)
	%
��
��
	

��
��
��
��
!	�
��
��
��
�	
��
	�
��
��
��
��
�	
>	

��
��
��
��
�

	9	
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
	�
�	
��

�
��
��
)	

	

��
�	
��
.�
��
��
�	
��
��
���
�

��
	��
��
��
��
��
�	
'
���
	�
�	
��

�
��
��
	

��
	�
��
�&
��
�	�
��
��
��
��
	'
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
���
��
�)	
	�
��
	�
��
��
	��
��
��
	�
��
��
�	
'
���
	�
�	

��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
�	
-*
#
2�)
	

�(
�	

��
��
��
�	

�

Page 23



��
��
��
��
	

���
	

��
�

��	
��
��
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
�	
�

��
���
�	
��
��
��
�	

�

��
���
�	
��

�
�
�
��
��
���
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	�
�	


��
��
��
		

��
��
	<
	�
�	�
�	

�
��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

	

��

�
�

��

�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�
��
�
�


��
��
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	�
�

���
��
	

��
��
��
�	
��

�
��
�	
��
�&
���
��
	�
�	

��
��

�
��
	'
��
��
	�
�	

(
)�

��

	

��
��


�
�	

�*
��

��
��

��
		
��	

��
.�
��
��
!	�
��
!	�
�	�
�!
	�
��
�	
��	
���
��
�	

��
	�
��
	�
�	�
��
	�
�

,�
��
��
�	
��
��
��
)	

#
��
��
	

�(
�	

=�
��
	(
��

�
	

��
��
	

�
��
�
�
��
��
	

��
���
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
	�
�	

��
&�
�	
��
	�
��
��
��
�	
��
��
	�
��
��
	��
	

��
��
��
	�
��
��

	�
��
��
��
��
��
��
	�
�	�
��
	

��
��
	�
�	�
��
	�

��
�

��
	�

�+
,+

,�
�

��
	�

��
��




	�
��
	�
�'
	


�
�
�
��
���
	&
��
'
�	
��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
�	

��
	��
)	

	

#
��
��
	

*�
�	
+
��
���
	

(
��

�
	�
��
�	

Page 24



��
��
��
��
	

���
	

��
�

��	
��
��
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
�	
�

��
���
�	
��
��
��
�	

�

��
���
�	
��

�
�
�
��
��
���
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	�
�	


��
��
��
		

��
��
	?
	�
�	�
�	

� �
��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

	

��

�
�

��

�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�
��
�

��
��
	
�


�
�	

��
��

��
��

��
	�
	'
���
	

��
��
��
	�
�	
��
��&
��
�	
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��	

��
	�
��
��
��
�!
	�
�	
/�
)�
0	�
��
&�
!	�
�	

��
��
�

�	
��
@	

•�
�

��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
�	

•�
:�

�
���
�	
��
��
��

�
��
�	

•�
�
���
��
���
�	
��
�&
�

�	

��
��
��

�
��
�	

•�


��
��
��
	�
�	
��
�

��
�	

-�
�

��
��
��
�	�
��
��
	�
��
�

��
�	

•�
��
��

�
��
�	
��
	

��
��
��
��
��
�	

��
	A
��
��
	$
���
��
��
�	

��
�&
�

�	

•�
=�
��
�

��
�	�
��
��
��
	�
��
	�
��
�

��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
	�
�	



��
�	
:�
�&
��
�	

	

��
��
��
��
	�
�	
/�
)�
0	�
��
&�
	

	
8
9#
	

�
��
�

��
��
	�
	�
��
��
���
��
�	
���
�	
��
	

��
���
�	

��
�"
�

��
	��
	

��
��
��
�2
�	
��
�&
�

��
	�
�	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
	�
��
���
��
�	
��
��
��
�	


�
��
���
	��
��
	+
�&
��
��
��
�	�
��
��
	

��
�	
�&
��
��
��
���
�	
��
	�
��
��
�

��
	

#
�	
�)
?	
��
�&
�	

	
	

�
��
�

��
��
	�
	�
�&
��
'
	�
�	�
��	
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
�	

��
	�
��
	�
��
&�
���
�	
��
	

��
��
��
�2
�	

��
�&
�

��
	�
��
�	
��
�	
��
�	

�
��
��
��
��
!	

'
���
	�
�


�
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
��
!	�
�	

��
��
���
��
	

*�
��
�

��
��
��
	�
�	�
��
��
	

��
��
��
	'
���
	

��
���
��
	�
�	
��
	

��
��
��
��
	&
��
	�
��
	.
��
��
��
��
	�
��
��
�	
��
�	
��
��
��
�
��

�
	

��
��
��
)	



(
�	

$
��
��
��
	

�

Page 25



��
��
��
��
	

���
	

��
�

��	
��
��
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
�	
�

��
���
�	
��
��
��
�	

�

��
���
�	
��

�
�
�
��
��
���
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	�
�	


��
��
��
		

��
��
	B
	�
�	�
�	

�
��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

	

��

�
�

��

�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�
��
�

��
��
	�
��
	�

��
��

�
�
��

	�
��

�	
	�
�	

��
&�
�'
��
	��
	�
��
	��
��
�	
��
	

��
��
��
��
2�	
��
��
��
���
��
	��
�	

�1

�
���
�

�	
��
�	
��
�	
��
�

��
��
,�
	

��
�	
���
���
�	
��
��
��
���
��
	'
���
��
	�
��
	



��
�

��2
�	
3��
�
���
	�
��
��
2)	

	

��
�	
��

�

�
��
�	
��
��
��
	��
	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
��
	�
�&
��
'
��
)		
	



��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
	

(
��

�
	�
��
�	

�
��
�

��
��
	�
	�
��
�

�	
'
���
	�
��
��

�
	�
�	

��
�

�
��


	
��

	�
��

��
��

��
���

��
�	

�	
��
	��
��
	'
���
	�
��
	�
��
&�
���
��
	'
���
��
	

��
�	
:�

�
���
��
�	
��
�	

�
�

��
��
��
���
���
�	
��
��	
��
	�
�&
��
��
��
	

��
�	
��
��
���
��
	�
�	
��
�	
�

��
���
�	

(
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
�)
	�
��

�
��

��
��
	

��
�	
��
��
��
���
��
	�
�	�
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	

��
��
��
�

��
	'
���
��
	

��
�
��
���
	

��
�&
�

��
	�
��
��
�	
��
��&
��
�	
��
��
�	

��
��
��
	�
�	
.�
��
���
��
�)
	

	

#
	�
��
�

�	
��	
��

�
��
��
	��
	�
��
	

��
�

���
	#
��
��
	(
��
��
��
��
�	

��
��
)		
��
���
��
�	

�
��
�	
'
���
	�
�	
��
&�
��
��
�	
��
	��
��
&�
��
��
	

��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
	��
�	
��

�
���
�	
��
�	
�

��
���
�	
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
	

#
��
�
	�
��
��
�!
	



��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
	

*�
�	
+
��
���
	

7�
��
	�
��
�	

�
��
�

��
��
	�
	�
�&
��
'
	�
�	�
��	

��
��

	�
�

��
��

	

��

�	
��

	�
��

�
��

�
��


	
��

��
��


�
��
	�
��
�	
��
�	
��
�	

�
��
��
��
��
!	

'
���
	�
�


�
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
��
!	�
�	

��
��
���
��
)	

#
�	
4)
4	
��
�&
�	

	
	

Page 26



��
��
��
��
	

���
	

��
�

��	
��
��
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
�	
�

��
���
�	
��
��
��
�	

�

��
���
�	
��

�
�
�
��
��
���
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	�
�	


��
��
��
		

��
��
	C
	�
�	�
�	

� �
��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

	

��

�
�

��

�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�
��
�

��
��
	
�


�
�	

��
��

��
��

��
	�
	'
���
	

��
��
��
	�
�	
��
��&
��
�	
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��	

��
	�
��
��
��
�!
	�
�	
/�
)�
0	�
��
&�
!	�
�	

��
��
�

�	
��
@	

•�


��
��
��
��
�	
��
�	



��
�
��
��
��
	��
��
	

•�
��
���
��
���
��
��
�	
��
	

-�
&�
��
��
��
��
�	�
��
&�

�
�	

��
��

�
��
�	

•�


��
��
��
	�
�	
���
��
��
	

��
��
��
�	
��
��
�	

	

#
�	
�)
�	
��
�&
�	

	
8
9#
	

�
��
�

��
��
	�
	�

��
��

	�
��


�
��

�
��

�	
��
�	

��
�	

�
��
	��
	�
��
��

�
�!
	��

�
��
��
�	

��
�&
���
��
	��
�	
��
�	
��

�
��
��
�	
��
�	
��
	



��
�
��
���
	�
��
��

,
	�
��
��
�

��
	�
�	

��
��
��
�,
�	
'
��
,	
��
	�
��
��
�	�
�	�
��
	



��
�

��	
��
�	
��
��
��
��
	�
�	
��

�
��
��
	

��
��

��
�

�	
��
&�
��
�)	

	

#
��
��
)		

��
��
�	
#
��
�	

7�
��
	�
��
�	

�
��
�

��
��
��
��
	�
�,
��
	�
	��
��
	�
��
�	
��
	

��
��
��
���
��
�	
�	

�
�


�
��

�
��

��
	��
	

���
�	
'
���
	��
��
���
��&
�	
��
��
��
��
�)
	

	

#
��
��
	



��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
	

(
��
	�
��
�	

Page 27



��
��
��
��
	

���
	

��
�

��	
��
��
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
�	
�

��
���
�	
��
��
��
�	

�

��
���
�	
��

�
�
�
��
��
���
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	�
�	


��
��
��
		

��
��
	�
�	
��
	�
�	

� �
��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

	

��

�
�

��

�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�
�	
�

��
��
		

��
��

	�
���

��
	�

��
�

��
��

��
�
�

�	

�

��
��

��
��
	�
�	
��
�	

��
	��
��
	'
���
	3�
��
���
	�
��
��
2	

��
��
��
���
��
	�
��
��
�	
��
��
	�
��
��
��
�	


�
�
��
��
��
��
)	

	

#
��
��
	



��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
	

7�
��
	�
��
�	

�
�

�

��
��
��
��
�	
��
�	
��
�	
��
	�
��

�-
#"

'�
�

��
��

	�
���

��
!	�
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
	

��
��
��
�	
��
��
��

�
��
�	
��
��
��

�
�	
��
	

��
��
��
�	
��
	�
��
	 
��
���
	�
��
	#
��
��	

��

�
��
	

��
�	
�

��
���
�	
��
��
�)	

	

#
��
��
	



��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
	

(
��

�
	�
��
�	

�
��
�

�
��
��
��	
��
�	
��
�&
��
��
	�
�	�
��
	

��
�

���

	
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
�	

��
�


��
��

��
��

	�
��

	�
��

��
�	

�$
��

��
�	

��
��

��
�	

��
��


�

	


�
	


��
�	
��
	�
��
	�
��
	��
	

��
�	


��
��
��
!	�
��
��
�	
��
�	
:�
���
��
	

��
��
��
	�
��
�&
��
�	
��
��
)	

	

#
��
��
	



��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
	

=�
��
��
��
	

��
��
	

�
��
�

�
��
��
��	
��
�	
��
�&
��
��
	�
�	�
��
	

	�
��

�

��

	�
�


	

��

��
��

��
��

�

��

�	

�
��
��
���
	�
��
��
	

��
���
��
��
	��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
	�
��
�&
��
�	
��
��
)	

	

#
��
��
	�
�	
��
��
&�
��
��
	�
��
��
��
	�
��
	�
�&
��
��
��
	

#
��
��
��
	�
��
��
	
=�
��
��
��
	

��
��
	

$
�'
��
��
	

Page 28



��
��
��
��
	

���
	

��
�

��	
��
��
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
�	
�

��
���
�	
��
��
��
�	

�

��
���
�	
��

�
�
�
��
��
���
��
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	�
�	


��
��
��
		

��
��
	�
�	
��
	�
�	

� �
��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

	

��

�
�

��

�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�
��
�

=�
���
'
��
�	
�
��
���
��
��
�	�
��
��
�

,!
	

��
�	
��
&�
��
�	

.
��

��
�(

��
��

�

�

�
�

��
	�

��
��




	��
�	
��
��
��
��
	�
�	

��
&�
�'
��
	�
�	
��
�	
+
��
'
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
��
	�
&�
�&
��
'
	�
��
	�

�
��
��
�	

��
��
�	

	

#
��
��
	

#
��
��
��
	�
��
��
	
#
��
��	
��
��
	

�
��
�

��
��
	
�


�
�	

��
��

��
��

��
	�
	'
���
	

��
��
��
	�
�	
��
��&
��
�	
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��	

��
	�
��
��
��
�!
	�
�	
/�
)�
0	�
��
&�
!	�
�	

��
��
�

�	
��
@	

•�
=�
�
���
	*�
��
�&
��
���
�	

��
�"
�

�	

•�
#
��
���
�

��
�	�
��
�&
��
��
	

•�
��
��
��
��
�	
��
���
��
	

	

#
�	
/�
)�
0	�
��
&�
	

	
8
9#
	

�
��
�

��
��
	��
��
��
�
		

��
��

	�
���

��
/�

��
��

��
	


��
	�
��
'
��
�	
��
'
	�
��
	

��
�<
!	�
�

��
��
��
	�
��
���
��
��
	�
��
	

�&
��
��
���
�	

�
���
��
�	
'
���
	�
��
��
�	
��
	

��
��
��
��
��
���
�	
��
��
��
	�
�	
��
�	
��
	

��
�

�	
��
	�
��
��
�	
�
��
�	
��
��

�
�&
�	

�
��
���
��
��
)	

	

#
��
��
	

#
��
��
��
	�
��
��
	
7�
��
	�
��
�	

�

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



 1 

   
CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

  
Subject:    Young Carers  

Committee:    Cabinet 

Date:    8 March 2011 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Mrs Watkins 

CMT Member: Director of Services for Children and Young People 
 
Author: Claire Oatway, Head of Service, Performance and 

Quality, Services for Children and Young People 

Contact:    Tel:  01752 307345 
    e-mail: claire.oatway@plymouth.gov.uk  

Ref:    YC T&F 1 

Key Decision: No 
 
Part: I    

 
Executive Summary: 
  
The Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Panel, through a Task and 
Finish Group, undertook a review of young carers’ identification and support during 
October.  
 
The panel report is attached (Appendix A) and included the following recommendations:  
 
1. DVDs on Young Carers and Hidden Harm to be shown to a wider audience, e.g. to 

members prior to Full Council, Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel and Health and Adult Social Care Panel; 

 
2. Plymouth City Council should lead a media campaign to raise awareness of young 

carers in Plymouth; 
 
3. Plymouth Young Carers at Efford, The Zone and Hamoaze House should be praised 

for the good work they do with young carers; 
 
4. PCC should review, resource and plan for adequate support for all young carers; 

especially if more young carers are identified; 
 
5. The level of joint training around young carers and Hidden Harm among Adults’ and 

Children’s workers should be addressed urgently; 
 
6. A protocol to ensure closer working between adults’ workers and children’s workers 

must be developed; 
 
7. PCC should provide young carers with assistance for carers duties, including safe 

lifting; 
 

Agenda Item 6Page 31



 2 

8. PCC must ensure improved collaboration and commissioning between Adult and 
Children Social Services.  This includes clarification of funding responsibility and 
possibly pooling of resources; 

 
9. Young Carers should be given more prominence within the Carers Strategy and 

supporting activities; 
 
10. Adequate funding should be identified for appropriate respite for young carers; 
 
11. Progress is reviewed after six months by the Children and Young People’s Scrutiny 

Panel. 
 
12. PCC uses its links through the Local Strategic Partnership to seek comments on the 

report from other agencies, such as the family court, probation, Children’s Trust, etc. 
 
13. When a young carer is identified by Adult Social Services, that worker must trigger a 

referral to complete a full young carers assessment as part of the adult care plan; 
 
14. PCC should provide young carers with assistance for carers duties, including safe 

lifting; 
 
15. Young carers should be identified as a vulnerable group by all agencies working with 

children and be provided with additional support where appropriate; 
 
16. PCC should work with schools to develop a strategy to help identify young carers and 

to ensure appropriate support is given.  This includes an identified Governor/Inclusion 
Governor, to be trained in identifying young carers , and a named senior staff 
member to ensure young carers have a plan of educational support;  

 
17. PCC should evaluate existing services to ensure the universal offer is appropriate; 
 
18. Schools should ensure sensitivity and priority is given to young carers on the 

administration of school support or welfare funds; 
 
19. Headteacher representatives should come forward with proposals to audit and 

identify young carers in schools. 
 

It is recommended that the report’s recommendations are accepted with minor 
amendments: 

 
Recommendation 3:   Other services supporting young carers, such as the Friends 

of Families of Special Children should also be praised for the 
work that they do to support this vulnerable group 

 
Recommendations 4 + 10:  It is accepted that PCC should review services for young 

carers within the limited resources it has available.  
Additional sources of funding should also be explored. 

Recommendations 7 + 14:  This expectation should be extended to include additional 
partners such as Health 

Recommendation 18 + 19:  The wording be amended to “Invite …..  to” rather than 
direct. 

         

Page 32



 3 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013 as amended by the four new priorities for the City and 
Council:  
  
Young carers’ issues cut across a number of Council and Plymouth2020 partnership 
priorities, especially Aspiration and Inequalities.  The recommendations contained within 
this report should be taken into account by the Council and all agencies when making 
decisions with regard to the future delivery and development of services to adults and 
young carers. 
 
          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
The Children and Young People’s Plan 2011-2014 is currently being developed and may 
need to include some of these recommendations.  Services should be reviewed to ensure 
cost effectiveness and where appropriate universal services such as schools and youth 
provision should be encouraged to do more to support this vulnerable group. 
 
Current budget plans do not include specific additional monies for expansion of young 
carers’ services and it is expected that the improvements recommended are achieved 
within existing resources.  National changes to grant allocations may, subject to ring-
fencing rules, reveal additional funding and it is expected that the Carers Strategic Group 
should explore whether this is possible. 
 
However, many of the recommendations are practical and can be achieved through better 
information sharing, partnership working and a more customer focussed approach to 
practice. 
 
There are no direct implications for IT or land. 
 
   
 
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc. 
 
Young carers often live in families where a person (adult or child) has a disability or where 
domestic abuse or substance misuse are an issue.  The recommendations included here 
provide additional support children living in those environments to help them to develop 
and grow.  
 

 
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
It is recommended that the report’s recommendations are accepted with minor 

amendments: 
 
Recommendation 3:   Other services supporting young carers, such as the Friends 

of Families of Special Children should also be praised for the 
work that they do to support this vulnerable group 

 

Page 33



 4 

Recommendations 4 + 10:  It is accepted that PCC should review services for young 
carers within the limited resources it has available.  
Additional sources of funding should also be explored. 

Recommendations 7 + 14:  This expectation should be extended to include additional 
partners such as Health 

Recommendation 18 + 19:  The wording be amended to “Invite …..  to” rather than 
direct. 

 

 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
The recommendations could be rejected, but the area of young carers’ identification and 
support has had cross party support in the past. The recommendations have a sound 
factual basis and every effort should be made to continue to improve services, albeit within 
limited financial resources. 

 
Background papers:   
 
Young Carers in Plymouth report 

 
Sign off:   
 
Fin SA/C

hS03
17/17.
2.11 

Leg LT 
11032 

HR  Corp 
Prop 

 IT  Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member Claire Oatway 
 

Page 34



 1

YOUNG CARERS IN 
PLYMOUTH  

Children and Young People's Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel Task and Finish Group report 

 

 
 
 

Page 35



 2

 
 
 
 
 
Contents 
 
Section Title Page Number 
 
1 Introduction   3 
 
2 Scrutiny Approach   3 
 
3 Key Issues   4 
 
4 Recommendations   8 
 
 
 Appendix 1 – Project Initiation Document   11 

Page 36



 3

I. Introduction 
 
The Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Panel scrutinises matters 
relating to the health and wellbeing of children and young people living and learning in the 
City. The panel scrutinises the impact of services provided by agencies ranging from the 
Council, Health, Police, schools and colleges and the Voluntary and Community Sector. 
The Scrutiny Panel also considers the impact of partnerships such as the Children and 
Young People’s Trust, Plymouth Safeguarding Children Board and Plymouth 2020 Wise 
Theme Group. 
 
 One of the priority issues considered by the Panel is the wellbeing of young carers in the 
City. The Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Panel convened a task and 
finish group in September to hear evidence on the number of children in the City who 
take on caring duties, the impact that has on their development and the support provided 
by organisations. This report summarises the findings of that review and makes 
recommendations for improvements to key services. 
 
Young carers’ issues cut across a number of Council and Plymouth2020 partnership 
priorities, especially Aspiration and Inequalities. The Council and its partners are required 
to take account of the recommendations contained within this report when making 
decisions with regard to the future delivery and development of services affecting young 
carers. 
 
The panel would like to thank the Democratic Support Officer – Amelia Boulter for 
support in organising the sessions. The panel would also like to thank officers and partner 
organisations for their contributions in the preparation for the sessions and in their 
cooperation in evidence gathering. 
 
 
2. Scrutiny Approach 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board approved in principle, on 22 September 
2010, the establishment of a Task and Finish group to review Young Carers in Plymouth 
with membership to be drawn from the Children and Young People Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel.  
 
Task and Finish Objectives 
 
The group was asked to – 
 

• Review the relevant part of the Carers Strategy. 
 

• Ascertain how effective current strategies are in identifying young carers. 
 

• Review the provision of support and services provided. 
 

• Review the effectiveness of multi-agency working in identifying support for young 
carers in the city. 

 
• To consider what can be done to improve identification and support for young 

carers. 
 
 

Page 37



 4

Membership 
 
 
The Task and Finish group had a cross party membership comprising the following 
Councillors -  

 
• Councillor Mrs Stephens (Chair) 

• Councillor Wildy (Vice Chair) 

• Councillor Mrs Nicholson 
 
For the purposes of the review, the Task and Finish Group was supported by – 

• Claire Oatway, Head of Service- Performance and Quality, Dept of 
Services for Children and Young People  

• Mark Collings, Children’s Fund Programme Manger, Dept of Services for 
Children and Young People  

• Amelia Boulter, Democratic Support Officer  

 

Methodology 

The Task and Finish Group convened on two separate occasions to consider evidence and 
hear from witnesses -  

 
• 15 October 2010 

• 28 October 2010 

Members of the Task and Finish Group aimed to examine and make recommendations on: 
 

• Feedback on the experiences of young carers in the City 
• The numbers of young carers in the City 
• Processes for the identification of young carers 
• Levels of support provided to young carers, to support them in their 

caring duties and in childhood development 
• Role of services targeted at adults in identifying and supporting young 

carers 
 

The Work Programme Request (PID) is attached as Appendix 1. 
 
Background information 
 
The Task and Finish Group heard representations from – 

 
•  Dave Schwartz, Strategic Commissioning Officer, Lead Reducing Harm 

and Risk Taking Behaviour, Plymouth City Council 
•  Helen Yeo, Team Leader for Young Carers, The Zone 
•  Caroline Storer, Plymouth Young Carers, Plymouth City Council 
•  Mark Bignell, Chief Executive, Hamoaze House 
•  Debbie Butcher, Commissioning Manager, Plymouth City Council 
•  Ruth Marriott, Chief Executive, The Zone 
•  Fiona Hutchings, Headteacher, Notre Dame 

Page 38



 5

•  Jane Taylor, Practice Manager, Parent Partnership 
•  Joy Howick, Head of Service Children in the Community, Plymouth City 

Council 
•  Craig McArdle, Commissioning Manager/Supporting People Manager 
•  Gary Walbridge, Service Manager Intermediate Care 
•  Kath Parker, Team Leader Adult Social Care, Plymouth City Council 

 
Background material provided to the group included: 
 

• Plymouth Carers Strategy 
• Additional information about young carers 

 
The panel reviewed two DVDs created by children and young people in Plymouth: There 
2 Care’, and ‘Hidden Harm: Lonely’.  

3.  Key issues arising from evidence 
 
• The need to improve the collaboration between Adult and Children Social 

Services with the pooling of resources and training; 

• The need for a strategy to be developed for schools to help identify young carers 
and to give the appropriate support; 

• To ensure a consistent approach is taken on how we target universal services to 
young people; 

• To ensure the quality of assessments undertaken at the clients’ home to identify a 
potential young carer; 

• That each school to have a named individual of senior standing to ensure that all 
young carers have a plan for educational and other necessary support; 

• To look at the training provided on this subject and to widen this training to 
include practitioners, teachers, school governors/inclusion governor etc; 

• Young Carers Strategy to be owned in the Carers Strategy; 

• That the Parent Support Advisors play a significant part in identifying young carers 
and are an independent person at the schools; 

• Looking at Hidden Harm and this vulnerable group and how we highlight this; 

• That sensitivity is needed around the administration of EMAs; 

• To recognise the work undertaken by the Zone and thanks to be extended 
Plymouth Young Carers Group and Hamaoze House for their excellent work; 

• The DVDs to be shown to a wider audience, e.g. all members prior to a Full 
Council meeting and to panel members of the Children and Young People 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



 6

 
The Carers Strategy 
 
The Carers Strategy is led by Pam Marsden, Assistant Director for Adults’ Social Care. It 
covers a full range of services provided to carers in the City and contains a section on 
young carers. Panel members noted the early steps taken to include young carers as a 
vulnerable group. However, young carers’ issues are not integrated into the whole 
agenda. 

 
Within Adults Social Care there is a carers' office and carers team that carry out 
assessments when adult carers are identified. Alongside GPs, they have developed an adult 
carers register. It was not clear from the discussion who’s responsibility it is to fund 
support to young carers – whether packages of support should be funded as part of an 
adults overall package. 

 
The group heard criticism that the consultation exercises that fed into the carers strategy 
were not child-focussed, often general events therefore young carers issues were not 
properly captured. 

 
Finally there were concerns about transition between adults’ and children’s services, 
specifically that adults’ services were often too general and did not cater for younger 
adults’ needs. 
 
Recommendations: 
 
1. PCC must ensure improved collaboration and commissioning between Adult and 

Children Social Services. This includes clarification of funding responsibility and 
possibly pooling of resources; 

 
2. Young Carers should be given more prominence within the Carers Strategy and 

supporting activities; 
 
3. Adequate funding should be identified for appropriate respite for young carers. 
 

 
The group heard from services for young carers that very few referrals are made from 
adult social care. Often, professionals working with young carers, including young carers’ 
services or schools were not updated of changes in condition of the adult by adults’ 
workers. This meant they were not able to fully support children. Equally, adults’ workers 
stated that they did not always know what services were available in the community for 
young carers. 

 
Workers with adults, especially Adult Social Care, were not likely to know about services 
available for young carers and there were concerns that assessments of adults’ needs did 
not always identify children in a caring role. Young carers reported that they wanted to be 
treated as responsible carers, that sometimes adults workers withheld information. 

 
Young carer advocates explained that in many cases if services properly supported adults 
in the household, there would be little demand for help for young carers. It was felt that it 
was felt that if the right services are provided for the adult then the need for young carers 
would lessen; and that there needs to be greater collaboration between Adult and 
Children Social Services. 

 

Page 40



 7

Recommendations 
 

4. When a young carer is identified by Adult Social Services, that worker must 
trigger a referral to complete a full young carers assessment; 

5. The level of joint training around young carers and Hidden Harm among Adults 
and Children’s workers should be addressed urgently; 

6. A protocol must be developed to ensure closer working between adults’ workers 
and children’s workers. 

 
Identification and Support for Young Carers 
 
Young carers support families with a range of conditions, including parental or sibling 
physical disability, mental health, substance misuse or domestic abuse. Children as young 
as 8 are known to be carrying out duties including: 
 

•  Personal care – washing and bathing; 
•  Household chores, including grocery shopping; 
•  Financial management, including paying bills, budgeting; 
•  Making sure siblings get to school. 

 
Currently there are around 170 known young carers in Plymouth. Benchmarks from 
national evidence forecast there are approximately 850. However, when the definition is 
extended to include substance misuse or domestic abuse this could be as high as 4,000. 
Geographically, young carers are spread citywide and this is an issue that can affect any 
family. 

 
Many people, including members of the Panel were unaware of the high number of young 
carers and the range of reasons children are in a caring role. The panel were shocked at 
the numbers of young people and the tasks they are asked to undertake on a regular 
basis. 

 
Many young carers are hidden from view because of fear or because they are not noticed 
by visiting professionals, particularly if there are other adults in the house. Young carers 
often want privacy and not interference and so do not raise concerns. 

 
Training on Hidden harm issues (where parental substance misuse or mental health are 
reasons for young people taking a caring role) has been rolled out across the City. More 
services are becoming sensitized to young carers’ issues, but there is still a lack of 
understanding. 

 
Referrals to support services for young carers tended to come from GPs and schools. 
Parent Support Advisers were recognised as important link because of the relationship 
they develop with parents. One school had identified a senior lead for young carers who 
was responsible for tracking their educational progress and providing support. This did 
not appear to be a universal offer. Many speakers confirmed that there is a need to look 
at the training provided on this subject and to widen this training to include practitioners, 
teachers, school governors/inclusion governor etc 

 
 
 

Page 41



 8

 
Recommendations 
 
7. DVDs on Young Carers and Hidden Harm to be shown to a wider audience, e.g. 

to members prior to Full Council, Children and Young People Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel and Health and Adult Social Care Panel; 

 
8. Plymouth City Council should lead a media campaign to raise awareness of young 

carers in Plymouth. 
 

 
There was strong evidence that young carers often have a very different experience of 
childhood: 

• Education attainment is poor at school and beyond as they put the needs of their 
family before their own future; one promising young student refused a place at 
university in order to care for her sister, 

• Young carers face extremely stressful situations at home, they are lonely and 
isolated, sometimes worrying about whether they will be taken away by social 
care, whether their parent might overdose, or whether benefits will be stopped; 

• Young carers often miss out on social skills, they don’t go out and play with other 
children; 

• Young carers have a lot of love and loyalty to their family but this can often give 
way to hurt, anger and confusion as well as distrust of adults; 

• There is a worrying generational cycle among young carers, 40-60% of young 
people in drug treatment services have parents who abused substances; 

• bullying is a major issue for young carers both in the community and at school; 

• young people are sometimes financially penalised if they have to take time off 
education to care;  

• the young carers tend to become ‘mini adults’ and take on additional duties which 
go beyond that which is usually acceptable e.g. responsibility for paying household 
bills, food shopping, collection of medicines, lifting and carrying heavy loads etc; 

• one female young carer had been caring for a male member of her extended family 
throughout her teenage life and was responsible for bathing him, but had not been 
identified as a young carer; 

• Young carers are not treated as disadvantaged and therefore cannot access 
additional help that other vulnerable groups receive e.g. children in care receive 
laptops; 

• Parents often feel ashamed or trapped and do not declare the support their 
children offer. 

 
 
 

Page 42



 9

Plymouth Young Carers at Efford, run by Plymouth City Council, provides part-time 
support to young people. It currently supports 50 children with 20 children on a waiting 
list. The service provides opportunities for those children to meet other young carers, to 
relax and to re-learn to play. The young carers’ project provides advice on health, 
including sexual health as well as benefits advice. 
 
The Zone runs a variety of services to raise awareness of young carers’ issues and to 
assess and support young carers. They suggested that young carers want practical 
support, for example: 
 
• A card system to flag up “I’m a young carer”, so that professionals take into 

account their role and share appropriate information with them; 

• being able to leave school early to collect siblings if needed. 

Some schools consider young carers needs as part of their inclusion duties, for example 
with a designated teacher that tracks the welfare and educational needs of young carers in 
a similar way to other vulnerable groups. This enables a relationship of trust to be built up 
and opportunities for young people to be given the space they need to study.  
 
Recommendations 

 
9. Plymouth Young Carers at Efford, The Zone and Hamoaze House should be 

praised for the good work they do with young carers; 

10. Young carers should be identified as a vulnerable group by all agencies working 
with children and be provided with additional support where appropriate; 

11. PCC should work with schools to develop a strategy to help identify young carers 
and to ensure appropriate support is given. This includes an identified 
Governor/Inclusion Governor, to be trained in identifying young carers , and a 
named senior staff member to ensure young carers have a plan of educational 
support;  

12. Headteacher representatives should come forward with proposals to audit and 
identify young carers in schools; 

13. PCC should evaluate existing services to ensure the universal offer is appropriate; 

14. PCC to review, resource and plan for adequate support for young carers, 
especially if additional young carers are identified; 

15. PCC should provide young carers with assistance for carers duties, including lifting; 

16. Schools should ensure sensitivity and priority is given to young carers on the 
administration of school support or welfare funds. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 43



 10

7 Recommendations 
 
The following recommendations are commended to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board for approval: 
 
PCC General 1. DVDs on Young Carers and Hidden Harm to be 

shown to a wider audience, e.g. to members prior to 
Full Council, Children and Young People Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel and Health and Adult Social Care 
Panel; 

 
2. Plymouth City Council should lead a media campaign 

to raise awareness of young carers in Plymouth; 
 
3. Plymouth Young Carers at Efford, The Zone and 

Hamoaze House should be praised for the good work 
they do with young carers; 

 
4. PCC should review, resource and plan for adequate 

support for all young carers; especially if more young 
carers are identified; 

 
5. The level of joint training around young carers and 

Hidden Harm among Adults’ and Children’s workers 
should be addressed urgently; 

 
6. A protocol to ensure closer working between adults’ 

workers and children’s workers must be developed; 
 
7. PCC should provide young carers with assistance for 

carers duties, including safe lifting; 
 
8. PCC must ensure improved collaboration and 

commissioning between Adult and Children Social 
Services. This includes clarification of funding 
responsibility and possibly pooling of resources; 

 
9. Young Carers should be given more prominence 

within the Carers Strategy and supporting activities; 
 
10. Adequate funding should be identified for appropriate 

respite for young carers; 
 
11. Progress is reviewed after six months by the Children 

and Young People’s Scrutiny Panel. 
 
12. PCC uses its links through the Local Strategic 

Partnership to seek comments on the report from 
other agencies, such as the family court, probation, 
Children’s Trust, etc. 

 
 

Page 44



 11

 
PCC Community 
Services 

13. When a young carer is identified by Adult Social 
Services, that worker must trigger a referral to 
complete a full young carers assessment as part of the 
adult care plan; 

 
14. PCC should provide young carers with assistance for 

carers duties, including safe lifting. 
 

PCC Services for 
Children and Young 
People 

15. Young carers should be identified as a vulnerable 
group by all agencies working with children and be 
provided with additional support where appropriate; 

 
16. PCC should work with schools to develop a strategy 

to help identify young carers and to ensure 
appropriate support is given. This includes an 
identified Governor/Inclusion Governor, to be trained 
in identifying young carers , and a named senior staff 
member to ensure young carers have a plan of 
educational support;  

 
17. PCC should evaluate existing services to ensure the 

universal offer is appropriate. 
 

Schools and partner 
organisations 

18. PCC should work with schools to develop a strategy 
to help identify young carers and to ensure 
appropriate support is given. This includes an 
identified Governor/Inclusion Governor, to be trained 
in identifying young carers , and a named senior staff 
member to ensure young carers have a plan of 
educational support; 

 
19. Schools should ensure sensitivity and priority is given 

to young carers on the administration of school 
support or welfare funds; 

 
20. Headteacher representatives should come forward 

with proposals to audit and identify young carers in 
schools. 

 
 

Page 45



 12

Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 
 

Request for Scrutiny  
Work Programme Item 

 
1 Title of Work 

Programme Item 
 

 
Young Carers in Plymouth 

 
2 Responsible Director 

(s) 
 
 
  

 
Bronwen Lacey, Director of Services for Children and 
Young People 

3 Responsible Officer 
 
 
Tel No.   
 

 
Mairead McNeil, Assistant Director  
 
 
 

4 Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) 

Councillor Mrs Watkins, Cabinet Member for Children 
and Young People 

 
5 Aim To examine the way young carers in Plymouth are 

identified and how the need to provide support and 
services are met. 
 

6 Objectives 
 
 
 
 
 

 
To review the relevant part of the Carers Strategy. 
 
To ascertain how effective current strategies are in 
identifying young carers. 
 
Review the provision of support and services provided. 
 
How effective is multi-agency working in identifying 
support for young carers in the city. 
 
To consider what can be done to improve identification 
and support for young carers. 
 

7 Benefits  
To raise awareness of the existence of young carers and 
their needs.  To help to foster multi-agency working. 
 

8 Beneficiaries Young carers in the city of Plymouth. 
Families of young carers. 
Plymouth City Council and its partners. 
 
 

Page 46



 13

9 Criteria for Choosing 
Topics 
 

Item on the Children and Young People Overview and 
Scrutiny work programme. 

10 Scope Definition –  
A young carer or young caregiver is a child or young 
person (up to the age of 18 or in some programs 25) 
whose life is affected by looking after someone with a 
disability or a long-term illness 
 

11 Exclusions  
 

12 Programme Dates Task and finish to take place over 2 days in October 
2010. 
 

 Timescales and 
Interdependences  

Milestones Target Date for 
Achievement 

Responsible 
Officer 

  
 
 

   

13 Links to other 
projects or initiatives 
/ plans 

Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel Task and Finish Group on Modernisation of Adult 
Social Care – TBC 
  

14 Relevant Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel / 
Membership if Task 
and Finish Group 
 

Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel 
 

15 Lead Officer for 
Panel 

Claire Cordory-Oatway 

16 Reporting 
arrangements 
 

Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 
Cabinet 
 

13 Resources 
 

Staff time and witnesses 

14 Budget implications 
 

Minimal 

15 Risk analysis 
 

Young carers not receiving support and services. 

16  Project Plan / 
Actions 
 

Project plan to be prepared by the panel in consultation 
with relevant partner agencies. 

 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

���������	�
�����
�
�

�������� � � � ���������	
����

����
���
���
�
����������� � � � ����
���

�
������ � � � � �����
�������
�
��������
������� � � ���

������������� �
� � � � � �
�
��
������� � � ����
�������������������������� �

�������� � � � ����� �
��
!"� �����������������#����$�
	
����

��

� � � � � �
��������� � � � %���&��
��
!'���%����&!�(&���
� � � � � )��*���+,��-�.�/01+� � � � �
�
����� � � � � �#�2�3 �

 �!�����"����� � � 4��� � � � � � �

������ � � � � 	�
��
�
#$�����%��
�����!��
�
5�
!�)��%��!���%�
����
������
�����
����
���
����

��
�
���
����6������
�.�����
��
������
����
�������(�����
��
(�����������
����������������
�������%�������������&�
)����
�
���
���������������������%�����
����
�
��
�����
��������

��7����������������
�����
�����������"� �����5�%����"��
���
��

����

�������8������
����
���%�
��
��!������
���
�������
�����8&9&����&�
:��������
�����
�%%��
����
�
����
�������"������������
�

����������������������������

�
���
�������������

�����������
������������;����		�#�����&�
�
�
���&�������'���()*)+()*,��"�����-�-��!������������.�&��������"������������!�
��-�������'��
�
8
����
!���������<������
����

��
�(�������
����
����������
���������

��7���������
�
��%�
�%��������������������������
������������

���%�6�%�����������
�

����������
���
���%����
�����������=�
��(��&�
��������
�
��&'�������"�����
�-�����������������'��'�����-���"��������&'�������"��
���'�-��/��������0������0������-�'��-��� �
�
)�����
�����6��
�������������
�����(�
!�����>/��"/10��!��
�����������2���
�
����

�����!���������
���
��%��
�����>�,�"���������
�������������%���������

Agenda Item 7Page 49



�

#�	2�3 2�	
����

��)�
����#�������������
����&�&��� �

%������������
������

�������
��������
���%���������������������%�
!�����!�����6
����
�
������������������!��%%�&�)�����

�������
�
�
��������
�����������
����������
%��
���
����
������<��
�����������=�
������

������(��������������<��
�����
�����(����
�����(����
�&��)������������(����
�����(�
!����>�,�"/10"��
����%�
�����
���
��������

������������
���������!���&�
���
�
��������&'�������"���1/1�
�������*2���������!�
����!0����'�����-�
����!0���"3�

���/�����0�#4��'��!���&�����""�""��������1�
�
)������

��7���
����

�����
�%�
����
����
�����%��
��
��!�����������������(������#����
:�
�

�
!�������!�������%�
�%����������%��
������
��������������&�
�
� ��
��������-�����"��5����"��"�������������-�-���������
�
����
��������
�%%�
������*�

�&� �����(����������������
����

��
�
���
�������������������
!��
����

��

�%��
��������������������������
������
������������

�������6��
��������
���������������=�
�����%������
�
�����
�*��

•� ;�������?????&)��(������	
����

����%��
��5���
•� �����%�����#����?& ��
�6�
•� 5��������?????&&&��������
•� �����??????&&@���
����
�
�����
•� 8
!�
����
!???&&�@���
����
�
�����
•� ���
����
����???��������

�
�&� �����(���������
��������>�,�"�������������������(�
!��������	
����

��

#����(����������2����
���
������<��
�����������=�
������

������(�������
�������<��
����������(����
�����(����
�&�

�
#����
��
�
������
�������
��(�����������
!��
�������������(���������
�����������������������

�
���
��������
���������
�����!���
!���������
����
���
��<��������
�����(�
��
���
�����&�
�������
��6��
��(���(�������
"������������������%������
����

��
�%��
����
��
�%%�
�������(���������
�����������(����������������

�����(�
!���!�����������
%����
���-����
��(��%�6�����6���
��������
����
����

���
������-�����
�������&�
:�����������������������
����������
����������
����

�����!��%%��������
��������(��

���!�������������(������
�����;����		�#�����&�
�
�
�
�'�������%���&����"����"�-���-���-����"��"�������������-�-���������
�

� )�����
�������
�������
�����������
!����������
���(���
����

���������
���
�������
� �(�������
����
�����
�������
������������
������������������������
�������������������

Page 50



�

#�	2�3 2�	
����

��)�
����#�������������
����&�&��� �

� ����

��&)�����
�����
�%%�
�����
�����
!�������������������������
������
� ��������������%����
���-����
��(���
����

����
��!���(�������&�

�
��
�
6��3/����-�&�&��"��
�
;��%�������������

���	
(������
����)�
��������	
����

����
���
���������
�����	
����

��)�
����8(�������
�#������A� �����5�%�����
�
�
�

�/�������

�
�
:�
�
�

�B�
����:�
0������

5�!� ���
��0/��

 #� � �����
;����

� 	)� � ������;��
� �

C��!�
���
!���)���%���*�)�%� ����"����������
���"���%�
��
��$�D�(��
�

��
�

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
  
Subject: Setting the Schools Revenue Budget 2011/12   

Committee:      Cabinet    

Date: 8 March 2011    

Cabinet Member: Councillor Mrs Watkins   

CMT Member: Director of Services for Children and Young People   

Author:  Anita Martin - Group Accountant for Schools  

Contact:  Tel: 01752 307433 
 Email: anita.martin@plymouth.gov.uk    

Ref:  

Key Decision: N    

Part: I   

 
Executive Summary:  
 
The Local Authority must make an initial determination of the Schools Budget for 2011/12 
and give notice of that determination to the governing bodies of the schools it maintains 
before the 31 March 2011.  
 
The Schools Budget includes the Individual Schools Budget (ISB) which is determined by the 
local schools funding formula and all other expenditure incurred in connection with the 
authority’s functions in relation to the provision of primary and secondary education and all 
relevant early years provision.  
 
The Local Authority determines the local schools funding formula to ensure the equitable 
distribution across all schools, in consultation with the Schools Forum.   
 
The Schools Budget has historically been funded from the ringfenced Dedicated Schools 
Grant (DSG), post 16 funding from the Young Peoples Learning Agency (YPLA) and the 
Standards Fund programme. The Schools Funding Settlement announced on the 13 
December 2010 ended the standards fund programme and streamlined the majority of grants 
into the DSG.  The Local Authority must determine how the grants streamlined into the DSG 
are distributed in 2011/12 and any changes to the local funding formula prior to the final 
budget allocations being sent to schools. 
 
The DSG has faced rising pressures over the last few years due to the increasing cost of 
providing for Special Education Needs (SEN) pupils. The Schools Forum commissioned a 
sub-group to review the funding of SEN in June 2009, to ensure it effectively and efficiently 
meets the needs of pupils.  
         
Corporate Plan 2010 – 2013 as amended by the four new priorities for the City and 
Council: 
 
Raising Aspiration: The principles of reducing turbulence and maintaining stability during 
2011/12 have been adopted, to protect the education system as far as possible during a 
period of significant change. 
Reducing Inequality: The proposals continue to target funding at vulnerable children and 
young people to support their development and educational achievement. The Pupil 

Agenda Item 8Page 53



Premium is welcome additional funding which is targeted to the most vulnerable children, in 
order to support schools in the work they do to raise attainment.   
          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
The recommendations in this report concern the distribution of the Dedicated Schools Grant 
(DSG).  The DSG is ring fenced and as such any changes within it will not have a direct 
impact on the MTFP. 
 
A number of local authority school related functions are funded by the central element of the 
DSG. As schools transfer to academy status the funding which the authority receives in 
relation to those functions will reduce. The authority will need to either a) replace the funding 
by charging the academy to continue delivering services on its behalf or b) re-focus services 
in line with the reducing requirement to deliver services on behalf of schools. 
 
The Pupil Premium is a new ring fenced grant allocated by the Department for Education in 
addition to the DSG. 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc. 
 
An Equalities Impact Assessment is currently being undertaken regarding the proposed 
changes to the funding of SEN in mainstream schools.  

  
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
a. The recommendations from the Schools Forum regarding the distribution of streamlined 

grants should be accepted by Cabinet. 
 
b. Cabinet note the risk to the central DSG budget as schools transfer to academy status.  
  
c. The current 1 to 10 banding system used to direct funding to SEN pupils in mainstream 

schools should be replaced by a 1 to 4 banding system from April 2011 for new cases 
and for transition from primary to secondary from April 2012. 

 
d. Agree new allocation formula for all new named SEN cases from April 2011 and for 

transition from primary to secondary from April 2012. 
 
e. The proposed DSG budget should be set with an expected £425,000 deficit carried 

forward to the 2012/13 financial year. The estimated deficit will be updated to reflect the 
January 2011 pupil numbers and the final individual schools budget calculation. 

 

 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
Continue to use all the predecessor grant distribution methodology to distribute streamlined 
grants in 2011/12 which would retain funding within a centrally managed programme. The 
recommended action is in line with the principles set out in the Education White Paper: The 
Importance of Teaching which outlines the commitment by the Government to devolve as 
much funding to schools as possible. 

Page 54



 
Background papers: 
Schools Forum Report: Setting the Schools Budget 2011/12 (27 January 2011) 
Schools Forum Report: Final Report on Funding Special Educational Needs in Mainstream 

Schools from April 2011. 

 
Sign off:   
 
Fin SA/ 

ChS0318/ 
24.2.11 

Leg LLT 
11020 
24.2.11 

HR  Corp 
Prop 

 IT  Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member: Colin Moore Assistant Director Services for Children & Young People 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 Whilst the Local Authority had been working towards the implementation of changes to 
its local schools funding formula from April 2011, the change of government in May 
2010 has led to substantial reform of the education system. The Coalition government 
will be reviewing the schools funding system during 2011. The Local Authority, in 
consultation with the Schools Forum, must decide the distribution of the Dedicated 
Schools Grant for 2011/12 and set the Schools Budget by the 31 March 2011.      

 
1.2 In order to cope with the large amount of work needed regarding changes to schools 

funding, the Schools Forum commissioned a Schools Forum Budget Modelling Sub-
Group in November 2010 with the following scope of work: 

 
a) Setting the 2011/12 Schools Budget taking account of local priorities and national 

directives prescribed via the Comprehensive Spending Review and the Education 
White Paper 

 
b)   Building on the local formula review work already developed for 2012/13 and 

beyond, taking account of the Education White Paper and possible national funding 
formula.  

 
1.3 This report focuses on the initial priority of setting the 2011/12 Schools Budget.  
 
1.4 The main areas for consideration include: 
 

i) The Schools Funding Settlement  
ii) Distribution of streamlined grants 
iii) Operation of the Pupil Premium  
iv) Overall affordability of the Schools Budget 

 
2.0 Schools Funding Settlement 
 
2.1 The Secretary of State for Education announced the schools funding settlement on the 

13 December 2010. The funding settlement covers the one year period of 2011/12 only. 
It is hoped that the Department for Education (DfE) will issue a settlement for the 
remainder of the Comprehensive Review Period following consultation during 2011. 

 
2.2 The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) has been allocated to local authorities based on a 

standstill funding value per pupil compared to 2010/11, before the allocation of the 
streamlined grants previously allocated via the standards fund programme. 

 
2.3 All schools will be guaranteed that there funding will not reduce by more than 1.5%, 

where pupil numbers stay the same. Whilst the guarantee will offer some protection, 
schools will be expected to make efficiency savings to live within the settlement. 

 
2.4 £24m of grants previously allocated via the standards fund programme have been 

streamlined into the Dedicated Schools Grant. Most grants appear to have been 
streamlined in full. 

 
2.5 Devolved Formula Capital has been reduced by 80% from the total available in 2010/11. 

Given that 40% of the 2010/11 allocation had been paid in 2009/10 and that some of 
the total funding is abated and held centrally for some projects, the actual reduction for 
schools compared to the 2010/11 allocation schools received will feel more like 65%.  

 

Page 56



2.6 Details of the Post 16 settlement are still awaited from the Young Peoples Learning 
Agency (YPLA). Early information indicates individual schools could experience 
potential reductions of up to 10%.   

 
3.0 Distribution of Streamlined Grants 
 
3.1 With the aim of simplifying the funding system a total of 20 grants previously 

distributed via the standards fund programme have been streamlined into the DSG. 
The cash value, totalling £24m, of the predecessor grants received in 2010/11 has 
been equated into a value per pupil and added to the DSG guaranteed unit of funding. 
 

3.2 A number of the predecessor grants had been expected to be discontinued from 
2011/12 prior to the announcement of the funding settlement.  

 
3.3 The Department for Education has given local authority’s the choice of using the 

current methodology to distribute the streamlined grants in the first year or targeting 
the resources locally. Given the short time scale and in the interest of stability, the 
Schools Forum Budget Modelling Sub-Group agreed the grants which could easily be 
incorporated into the local funding formula and the grants which would require greater 
consideration. 

 
3.4 After taking on board the detailed considerations of the sub-group, the Schools Forum 

and officers make recommendation to Cabinet regarding the treatment of streamlined 
grants. The detail is shown in Annex A and is summarised below. 

 
 
 

Streamlined 
Grant 
£’000 

Proposed 
Distribution 

£’000 

Increase/ 
(decrease) 
£’000 

Allocated Direct to Schools 18,184 19,362 1,178 
Centrally Managed Programmes 5,834 2,473 (3,361) 
Total  24,018 21,835 (2,183) 
 
The net decrease relates to a) pupil number changes and b) the prioritisation of the 
Schools Forum when assessing the overall affordability of the schools budget.   

 
4.0 Operation of the Pupil Premium 
 
4.1 On 13 December 2010, Michael Gove set out funding arrangements for the Pupil 

Premium which targets additional funding to the most vulnerable children, in order to 
support schools in the work they do to raise attainment. 

 
4.2 The Pupil Premium will be allocated for service children, deprived children as 

assessed by FSM entitlement and Looked After Children in years reception to 11.  
 
  

Category £ per 
pupil 

Estimated 
Total 

Allocation 
£’000 

Service Children 200 373 
Free School Meal 430 2,606 
Looked After Children 430 106 
  3,085 

 

Page 57



 
4.3 The DfE will issue guidance to schools on what the Pupil Premium should be spent 

on. The additional funding cannot be used to bridge a schools budget gap. Individual 
schools will need to report to parents how the premium has been spent.  

 
5.0 Special Educational Needs (SEN) 
 
5.1 Funding for SEN has been delegated to schools for all pupils apart from those in the 

early years sector, using a formula for low level needs (Category A) and named 
allocations for high level needs (Category B). Named allocations for high level needs 
are linked to statutory assessment of need and allocated via the Statementing 
Resources Panel (SRP). Allocations are made throughout the year and will follow a 
pupils movement between schools. 

 
5.2 Significant growth in named allocations between 2007 and 2010 has put pressure on 

both the contingency for in-year allocations and the overall schools budget. The chart 
below shows the initial allocation at the start of the financial year compared to the total 
expenditure, which includes the in-year allocations, between 2007 and 2010. 
Allocations made in year will have a knock on impact on the subsequent years. The 
extrapolated trend shows that costs will continue to increase at a significant rate if no 
action is taken. 

 
Statementing Spend 2007-2010

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12

S
ta
te
m
en
ti
n
g
 C
at
 B
 S
p
en
d
 £
'0
00

Net Initial Allocation Total Spend Initial Allocation Projected Trend Total Spend Projected Trend  
 
5.3 The Schools Forum commissioned a sub-group to review the funding of SEN in June 

2009, to ensure it effectively and efficiently meets the needs of pupils. The initial 
review plan was linked to an April 2011 implementation date. The implications of 
government funding and policy changes will make it necessary for some proposals to 
be implemented in April 2011, whilst allowing the group to continue reflecting national 
changes ready for April 2012. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 58



 
5.4 No banding descriptors exist to support the current system of allocating funding for 

SEN. Banding descriptors provide clarity to schools, parents and panels when making 
decisions regarding the needs of pupils and the resource implications. The current 1 to 
10 banding system should be replaced by a 1 to 4 banding system from April 2011 for 
new cases and for transition from primary to secondary from April 2011. Banding 
descriptors should be introduced to provide clarity regarding whether a need could be 
met from the schools formula allocation and when an additional named allocation 
would be necessary. 

 
5.5 The Category A funding formula should remain the same in 2011/12. Further work 

should be undertaken to refine the formula distribution method with a view to 
increasing delegation from April 2012. The final proposed formula should take into 
account details from the White Paper and the SEN Green Paper.  

 
5.6 The current funding system requires schools to meet the needs of pupils below Band 7 

(new proposed Band 2). When a pupils needs are judged to be Band 7 (new proposed 
Band 2) or above the total funding of a Band 7 (new proposed Band 2) etc. is 
allocated to the school. There is an argument that some of the resources needed to 
meet pupil needs are already delegated to schools via the formula allocation. If only a 
top up allocation was paid to the school for the additional need beyond the formula 
funding, the overall cost of the named allocations would be significantly reduced.  

 
5.7 As pupils with previously approved allocations leave the school, the savings on the 

Category B budget should be transferred to the Category A budget and increase the 
total formula funding available to schools.  

 
5.8 The proposals in this report do not reduce the spending commitment on Special 

Educational Needs and thus do not have a direct impact on individual school budgets 
or the funding currently allocated to named pupils. The proposals are designed to 
prevent the escalation of costs by controlling the allocations made in year.  

 
6.0 Overall Affordability of the Schools Budget 2011/12 
 
6.1 Given that the only increase in the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) in 2011/12 will be 

through the streamlining of grants, consideration must be given to expected cost 
pressures when determining the overall affordability of the 2011/12 Schools Budget. 
The DSG budget must legally be determined using the January pupil census data. The 
draft budget outlined in this report has been based on the October pupil census and 
thus is subject to pupil number change. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



 
6.2 Expected cost pressures are shown in the table below.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 
6.3 The Schools Forum considered the cost pressures and the overall affordability of the 

schools budget which has been taken into account in the recommendations regarding 
the distribution of streamlined grants. 

 
6.4 Proposals for balancing the budget are shown in the table below. 

 
  £'000 
Estimated budget gap reported to Schools Forum 27 January 2011 2,217 
   
Recommended Savings:  
   

1 

Reduction of the AST budget by 50% - all outreach will cease, 
where schools require outreach to be provided by an AST they 
will need to pay supply costs to the AST's school. 

(300) 

2 

Targeted Support for primary and secondary schools will be 
reduced as follows:                                                                                   
50% delegated to schools instead of the original proposal of 75%                                                             
0% held centrally  instead of the original proposal of 25% (698) 

3 
Diploma Grant reduced in line with the predicted learner 
numbers (59) 

4 School review group funding reduced (75) 
5 Extended schools subsidy - Celebratory events budget ceased (150) 

6 
Extended schools subsidy funding delegated to schools reduced 
by 50% (410) 

7 LA income target for Traded Services with academies (200) 
 Deficit to be carried forward to 2012/13 325 
   
 Supporting Schools in Financial Difficulty (Max funding pot) 100 
 Total Proposed Deficit carried forward to 2012/13 425 

 
 
 

Cost Pressure £000 

1 Repayment of the 2010/11 DSG Deficit 517 

2 Growth in SEN Named Allocations 872 

3 Provision for Special School Post 16 Places 100 

4 Increased data factors i.e. UPS, FSM, NNDR 34 

 School Budget Pressure to date 1,523 

5 School Sports Partnership 110 

6 Special schools increase to JE average cost 188 

 Total Schools Estimated Pressures 1,821 
   

7 Central Expenditure Pressures 396 

 Total Estimated DSG Pressures  2,217 

Page 60



 
6.5 The grant conditions of the DSG require any surplus or deficit to be carried forward to 

the next financial year. The DSG budget was set with an agreed deficit of £350,000 in 
both the 2009/10 and 2010/11 financial years. The proposed deficit in 2011/12 does 
not represent significant growth and equates to 0.25% of the total estimated DSG 
(before academy recoupment).  Any deficit carried forward would be the first call on 
the 2012/13 DSG allocation. The DSG will be subject to a national review during 
2011/12. The local authority will continue to work with the DfE to ensure Plymouth is 
not disadvantaged by any new national funding formula adopted from 2012/13. 

 
6.6 The proposals regarding the distribution of the DSG in 2011/12 represents a balanced 

allocation across all schools. However, a very small number of schools (3 primary and 
1 special schools) will remain on the Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG). The nature 
of the MFG means that those schools will effectively lose a maximum of 1.5% 
compared to their 2010/11 budget. A number of other schools may experience cash 
reductions but this will relate to pupil number and other data changes rather than as a 
result of the redistribution of streamlined grants.   

 
6.7 To support schools experiencing financial difficulty in 2011/12 the Schools Forum 

proposes that a Supporting Schools in Financial Difficulty budget be created from the 
DSG up to a maximum value of £100,000. An application and assessment process will 
be determined by the Schools Forum and local authority officers in line with the 
scheme operated in 2010/11.   

 
6.8 The Schools Finance Regulations prohibit the increase of the central expenditure at a 

rate which is higher than the direct schools expenditure.  The total estimated DSG 
budget shown in Annex B demonstrates that no breach of the central expenditure limit 
has occurred.  

 
7.0 Academy Recoupment 
 
7.1 Part of the Local Authority’s DSG allocation is recouped by the DfE for each school 

transferring to academy status. The majority of the recoupment is related to the 
Individual School Budget which is then paid direct to the academy by the YPLA. 
However, an element of the recoupment relates to the central expenditure where 
responsibilities are transferred to the academy.  

 
7.2 The expected pressures on the central expenditure outlined in paragraph 5.2, includes 

an estimated academy recoupment of £200,000 for the three Plymouth schools which 
have transferred to academy status in 2010/11.  

 
7.3 Where funding is recouped and paid direct to the academy the authority will need to 

either a) replace the funding by charging the academy to continue delivering services 
on its behalf or b) re-focus services in line with the reducing requirement to deliver 
services on behalf of schools. A Prospectus of Services is currently being developed 
by Officers. 

 
7.4 As part of balancing the 2011/12 budget an income target has been set for the 

Authority to recover lost DSG via charging academies for services.  
 
7.5 Additional risk surrounds the number of schools likely to transfer to academy status 

during 2011/12. Current assessment indicates an additional nine schools could 
transfer by 01 April 2011 which could increase the central expenditure recoupment to 
£1m.   

 

Page 61



7.6 The Authority will need to work quickly to re-focus services and develop service level 
agreements with academies to ensure the deficit on the DSG carried forward to 
2012/13 is not increased.  

 
8.0 Recommendations 
 
8.1 The recommendations from the Schools Forum regarding the distribution of 

streamlined grants should be accepted by Cabinet. 
 
8.2 Cabinet note the risk to the central DSG budget as schools transfer to academy 

status.  
 
8.3 The current 1 to 10 banding system used to direct funding to SEN pupils in 

mainstream schools should be replaced by a 1 to 4 banding system from April 2011 
for new cases and for transition from primary to secondary from April 2012. 

 
8.4 Agree new allocation formula for all new named SEN cases from April 2011 and for 

transition from primary to secondary from April 2012. 
 
8.5 The proposed DSG budget should be set with an estimated £425,000 deficit carried 

forward to the 2012/13 financial year. The estimated deficit will be updated to reflect 
the January 2011 pupil numbers and the final individual schools budget calculation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



Proposed Distribution of Streamlined Grants         Annex A 
 

Predecessor Grant Value 
£ 

Proposed Distribution Methodology 

School Standards Grant 6,250,282 Mirror national formula used in 2010/11 
School Standards Grant 
(Personalisation) 

 
1,919,896 

 
Mirror national formula used in 2010/11 

Schools Development Grant   
2,854,331 

Allocate funding per pupil based on the historic 
allocation for individual schools 

ICT in schools  
759,961 

Historic funding per pupil added to the Age 
Weighted Pupil Units (AWPU) 

1:1 Tuition  
 

1,321,156 

Allocate 2/5 based on pupil numbers, 2/5 based 
on prior attainment data and 1/5 based on free 
school meal eligibility.  

Extended Schools Subsidy  
 

977,454 

42% to be allocated to schools based on free 
school meal eligibility. 58% budget savings to 
offset cost pressures. 

Extended Schools 
Sustainability 

911,189 A lump sum equivalent to the cost of a Parent 
Support Advisor (PSA) for 20 hours per week, 
term time only, should be allocated to all 
schools. Individual schools would decide how to 
use this new allocation. A provision for 
redundancy costs would need to be set aside in 
the first year of delegation. 

Gifted and Talented 21,531 Continue allocating to special schools using 
historic funding per pupil 

Enterprise Learning 364,664 Funding should be allocated to the 11-15 
AWPU and special school place values 

Deprivation 623,793 Continue allocating to special schools using 
historic funding per pupil 

Specialist Schools 2,714,189 Continue funding the current specialism’s using 
the specialist college funding formula 

School Lunch Grant  
 
 
 
 
 

376,784 

Continue to distribute funding based on January 
pupil numbers. Schools operating their own 
catering facility will continue to receive devolved 
funding into the schools budget. The allocation 
for schools within the Plymouth City Council 
catering contract and PFI schools will be 
allocated directly to the catering provider.  

Ethnic Minority Achievement 
Grant 

 
 

159,974 

The funding should be devolved to schools via 
the Ethnic Minority Achievement Team with the 
majority of funding supporting new arrivals.  

Advanced Skills Teachers 604,809 50% of the funding should be allocated to 
support the strategic deployment of AST’s 
across the City. 50% budget savings to offset 
cost pressures. Schools with AST’s will need to 
charge other schools wishing to utilise the AST 
time to compensate for the lost outreach 
funding.  

Targeted Support for Primary 
and Secondary Strategy 

1,398,858 50% of the funding should be allocated to 
schools based on pupil numbers. 50% budget 
savings to offset cost pressures. 

Diploma Formula Grant 159,974 £100,000 allocated to schools in line with 
diploma learners in September 2011 with 
£59,974 budget savings to offset cost 
pressures. 

Page 63



Predecessor Grant Value 
£ 

Proposed Distribution Methodology 

School Review Group 230,432 £155,432 should continue to be held centrally 
and targeted in year to support schools in most 
need at times of high risk. £75,000 budget 
savings to offset cost pressures. 

Excellence in Cities 1,804,631 65% of the funding should be retained for use 
by the Excellence Cluster to ensure continuity 
of its frontline delivery for the most vulnerable 
children and young people.  
35% of the funding should be allocated to 
primary and secondary schools using the 
following formula: 50% 4 to 15 pupil numbers 
and 50% 4 to 15 FSM entitlement. 
A provision for redundancy costs would need to 
be set aside in the first year of delegation. 

Primary Expansion Funding 250,000 65% of the funding should be retained to 
support core staffing and provide continuity of 
service. 
 
35% of the funding should be allocated to 
primary schools using the following formula: 
50% 4 to 10 pupil numbers and 50% 4 to 10 
FSM entitlement. 

Primary Expansion Satellite 
Cluster 

160,000 25% of the funding should be retained by the 
Satellite Cluster to support a transition period 
and allow restructuring of gifted and talented 
provision across the cluster. 
75% of the funding should be allocated to 
primary schools using the following formula: 
50% 4 to 10 pupil numbers and 50% 4 to 10 
FSM entitlement. 
 

Total Streamlined Grants 24,018,290  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



Estimated DSG Budget 2011/12          Annex B 

 Dedicated Schools Grant  Dedicated Schools Grant  Notes   

 2010/11 2010/11 2010/11   2011/12 Change Change     £'000 

 Original 
Budget 

Academies & 
Streamlined 
Grants 

Adjusted 
Budget   Estimated 

Budget in Budget in Budget 
 

Estimated DSG 171,008 

 £'000 £'000 £'000   £'000 £'000 %  Approved Brought Fwd   

Direct Schools Expenditure                less 2010/11 Deficit Carried Fwd 517 
Nursery Schools 420 79 499   478 -21 -4.1%  2010/11 DSG Budget 170,491 
Primary Schools 58,155 6,881 65,036   67,092 2,056 3.2%  less DSG Allocated 170,716 
Secondary Schools 54,190 13,975 68,165   68,856 691 1.0%  less Academies recoupment 200 
Special Schools 9,912 693 10,605   10,843 238 2.2%  Forecast under/(over) spend (425) 

Schools excluding Contingency 122,676 21,628 144,304   147,269 2,965 2.1%      
EY PV and I 4,437   4,437   6,191 1,754 39.5%      
Contingency 50   50   1,743 1,693 3386.0%  Includes growth items not yet included above   
Statementing Contingency 343   343   343 0 0.0%      
Prudential Borrowing 603   603   685 82 13.6%      
Grants held centrally 0 6,932 6,932   2,562 -4,370 -63.0%  Includes direct schools allocation to PRU's   

Total Direct Schools Expenditure 128,109 28,560 156,669   158,793 2,124 1.4%      
                    

Central Expenditure                    
Academies Income Target 0   0   -200 -200 100.0%      
Former Standards Fund contribution 272   272   0 -272 -100.0%  Broadband subsidy (£190k), strategies (£65k) Drug& Alc (£17k) 
Directorate Management 42   42   28 -14 -33.7%  Reduced business support   
SEN Projects & Management 116   116   116 0 0.0%      

Independent Spec Schools & SEN  1,566   1,566   2,202 636 40.6%  
Central statementing and independent sector place growth 
(£489k), ASD invest to save (£147k) 

Behaviour & Attendance 2,424   2,424   2,278 -146 -6.0%  ACE Restructure   
Behaviour Support Team 831   831   822 -8 -1.0%  2010/11 Delivery plans   
FSM, Admissions & Transport 1,842   1,842   1,918 76 4.1%  Increased FSM   
Integrated Disability Service 967   967   1,014 47 4.9%      

EY Education and Childcare 847   847   801 -46 -5.4%      
Ethnic Minority Achievement Service  
& National Strategies 526   526   415 -112 -21.2%  Reduction of national strategies   
Challenge and Support 83   83   83 0 0.0%      
Workforce Reform Development 57   57   57 0 0.0%      
Inclusion Equality Diversity 313   313   326 13 4.2%      
Pension and Other Costs 840   840   840 0 0.0%      
Maternity and Other Absence 570   570   585 15 2.7%    
Central Expenditure Overhead 632   632   639 6 1.0%      
Total Central Expenditure 11,927 0 11,927   11,923 -4 0.0%    
                  
Total Dedicated Schools Grant 140,037 28,560 168,597   170,716 2,119 1.3%    

 

P
age 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



 
CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

  
Subject: Services for Children and Young People Basic Need 

Programme 
 
Committee: Cabinet 
 

Date: 8 March 2011 
 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Mrs Watkins  
 

CMT Member: Director of Services for Children and Young People 
 

Authors: Gareth Simmons, Programme Director for Learning 
Environments 

 Jayne Gorton, School Organisation and Pupil Access 
Manager 

 

Contacts:   Tel: 01752 307161 
 gareth.simmons@plymouth.gov.uk 
  Tel: 01752 307472 
 jayne.gorton@plymouth.gov.uk 
  

Ref: MC.JEG/LA (CAB) (96) (27/01/11) 
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Part: I 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
This report seeks authorisation from members to allow officers to seek approval 
from the Office of the Schools Adjudicator to increase the Planned Admission 
Number for five primary schools in the city with effect from 1 September 2011 to 
meet the increased number of primary age pupils following consultation with 
stakeholders on the proposed changes and to deliver planned alterations to 
schools buildings to support the increase in capacity needed for 2011 and 2012. 
  
Corporate Plan 2010-2013 as amended by the four new priorities for the 
City and Council: 
 
This programme will align with and supports the following Corporate Priorities: 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 67



1 Deliver growth: promote Plymouth as a thriving growth centre by creating 
the conditions for investment in quality new homes, jobs and infrastructure. 
The Basic Need programme delivers education infrastructure that supports 
the growth of the city, by supplying good quality education provision that 
meets need, it makes the city an attractive place to live and work. This 
paper brings to Cabinet the next steps in a larger Basic Need infrastructure 
programme. 

2 Raise aspiration: raise the skills and expectations of Plymouth residents 
and ensure our young people achieve better qualifications and find high 
quality jobs. It is essential that there are sufficient school places that inspire 
children to attend and enjoy school; without Basic Need growth there is a 
serious risk that children in the city will not get access to an education. 

3 Reduce inequalities: reduce the large economic and health gaps between 
different areas of the city by tackling the causes. The Basic Need growth 
areas have been carefully mapped and the proposals in this paper are 
targeted at narrowing the gaps in inequality of access to education places. 

4 Provide value for communities: become more efficient and join up with 
partners and local residents to deliver services in new and better ways. The 
proposals seek to use the underused value there is in education assets to 
be the base for expansion so that investment costs have been kept to a 
minimum so that resources are targeted to achieve the maximum value for 
communities. 

  
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications: 
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
The Basic Need programme has been approved in the Council’s capital 
programme. This cabinet paper sets how this programme of funding will be split 
down to individual school projects for an initial wave of investment. 
 
The Basic Need programme will require investment to deliver solutions across 
the city to meet the start of the academic year in September 2011. Approval of 
the recommendations will give the necessary authority for the delivery of the 
individual projects across the city in order to manage the initial increase in pupils 
forecast. Further cabinet decisions will be necessary in the summer 2011 that will 
monitor the progress of BN growth and set in place proposals that deal with 
further growth for 2012 onwards. Officer time and resources used to develop the 
proposals has been met from within the existing Services for Children and Young 
People’s revenue budgets and the development of the programme including its 
management will continue to be met from these resources. 
 
The Council has since the last report to Cabinet in October 2010 received 
confirmation of the level of capital allocation for 2011/12 and an indication that 
2012/13 will be in line with these allocations. The announcement allows the 
authority to plan its capital investment programme and the Cabinet budget report 
on 8 February included a proposed capital programme for recommended 

Page 68



approval at full Council on 28 February. This included allocations for Basic Need 
schemes of £0.5m in 2011/12 and £5.3m in 2012/13 subject to funding. The 
Government also plans to complete a review of schools funding during 2011/12. 
 
The contractual commitment to these projects which will be subject to further 
reports will make a commitment of £1m to future years of the capital programme 
in 2013/14  and 2014/15. This commitment will form the first priority for capital 
allocations of these future years when the level of funding from Government is 
known. 
 
There will be an increase in the number of teachers and services to meet the 
pressure of increased pupil numbers. Predominantly, the cost of these increases 
will be met from central government as funding for schools is currently formula 
driven on pupil numbers. The Government has allowed for this nationally in the 
Comprehensive Spending Review. There can be an issue with this formula 
funding when numbers are growing as the budgets are set on lower numbers of 
the previous year. Work is ongoing with each school as to how this temporary 
funding situation can be overcome as there are different solutions depending on 
the schools’ circumstances. The issue for individual schools will be whether the 
funding increases generated from increased pupils will actually cover real cost 
increases. This can be an implication where a school increase generated an odd 
Planned Admission Number (PAN). For this reason all the plans incorporated in 
this report will either regularise a PAN to a whole number or increase it by a 
whole form of entry. By this method the capital investment optimizes the revenue 
position for each school and is a significant advantage for these schools. 
 

Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, 
Risk Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc. 
 
The planning of Basic Need has been done on the basis of equal opportunity; 
ensuring that a broad, mixed and diverse provision is available across the city. 
This will offer parents choice and diversity in a sustainable way. Also a part of the 
strategic development is work related to the nature of special education and 
inclusion; making sure that Basic Need provision is in place for these services; to 
ensure that the diverse pattern of education contains sufficient places for more 
vulnerable groups. 
 

Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
1. That Cabinet approve the in year expansion of PANs for reception year as 

listed in section 4.0 and that by virtue of this, Cabinet also give approval to 
officers commencing the public consultation on the formal expansion of 
these schools by raising their PAN in 2012. 

 
 
 

Page 69



2. That Cabinet approve that officers continue to consult with schools to 
develop proposals for expansion after 2011 subject to available funding. 

 
3. That Cabinet approve the provisional allocations in section 6.0 and delegate 

to the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People, in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Finance, Property, People and Governance and the 
S151 officer approval of virements within the Council approved programme 
as projects reach greater clarity.  

 
4. That officers are given authority to set up the governance of the Basic Need 

programme as set out in section 9.0 to steer the programme of work. 
 

Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 

The Council needs to take into account that it would be failing in its statutory duty 
to provide sufficient places in schools for parents and pupils within the city if it 
chose not to progress to supplying additional school places. 
 
In developing the proposals for the five schools presented in this cabinet paper 
all 100 schools have been considered as options to meet growth. In addition a 
number of schools have been taken forward for more detailed analysis and 
evaluated against a developed criteria. Finally the final five schools have back up 
proposals in case the obstacles to delivery prove impossible to overcome. 
 

Background papers: 

1 Investment for Children Cabinet Paper approved 11 November 2008 
2 Plymouth City Council Children’s Services Strategy for Change Investment for 

Children 
3 Basic Need cabinet paper 19 October 2010  
 

 
Sign Off: 
 
Fin 

CR 15 
feb 
2011 

 
Leg 

 
10858/

SO. 

 
HR 

NA  
Corp         
Prop 

CJT/0
61/170
211 

 
 IT 

NA  
Strat  
Proc 

JK 
15th 
feb 
2011 

Originating SMT Member: Maggie Carter, Assistant Director for Services for Children and 
Young People. 

Page 70



1.0 Introduction 

1.1 For some time there has been a national decline in pupil numbers in state 
funded schools. This trend is turning and pupil numbers are projected to increase 
from 2011 onwards. The rise in the national pupil population is chiefly brought 
about from an increase in the birth rate, which is now feeding into early years and 
reception classes. Numbers in maintained nursery and primary schools have 
started to rise and are expected to continue to rise sharply. By 2018 numbers in 
the country are projected to reach levels last seen in the late 1970s. The 
numbers of children in maintained nursery and primary schools are projected to 
be around eight per cent higher in 2014 than 2010 and the number of pupils aged 
five and six is projected to increase by some 12 per cent. 
 
1.2 The detailed analysis of the growth in Plymouth was considered at 
Cabinet on 19 October 2010 and approval was given to officers to begin 
consultation on proposals to meet this demand.  
 
1.3 This cabinet paper sets out the results of this initial consultation and puts 
forward proposals to deal with the initial growth in 2011. It also sets out the 
implication of meeting this initial Basic Need in what is a first wave of investment. 
Finally the paper considers the processes necessary to monitor the growth and 
setting in place a timescale for coming back to Cabinet with further waves of 
investment to meet the growing demand  post 2011.  
 
2.0 Birth Rates in Plymouth 

2.1 The live birth figures provided by the Plymouth NHS Trust are compared 
with the number of children arriving at school four years later and this data is 
used to produce a trend which is used to forecast future school years’ reception 
cohorts. 
 
2.2 The data was then used to look at each locality in detail and to analyse the 
pressure that has been experienced by the admissions team in placing children 
in certain hot spots around the city. The results of this analysis on a locality by 
locality basis are as follows: 
 

North East and Central (NEC) 
 
This locality has a capacity based on PAN that is higher than its actual 
capacity. This means that at full capacity the locality would be over by 288 
places. NEC is an importer of pupils and a significant amount of pupils live 
outside the locality. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 71



 
North West (NW) 
 
The North West has traditionally exported pupils and has lost a significant 
number of pupils to surrounding localities, but as the birth rate has 
increased those spaces will reduce. Schools in the NW were significantly 
oversubscribed in September 2010 which resulted in a number of pupils 
being placed at differing schools to either their siblings or their three 
preferences.  
 
Plymstock 
 
Plymstock currently has surplus capacity and this is expected to remain, at 
least until 2014. The number of children born in Plymstock is always lower 
than the PAN and it therefore attracts pupils from neighbouring localities. 
 
Plympton 
 
The number of children born in Plympton is lower than the PAN and is 
expected to attract some pupils from neighbouring localities, based on the 
current pressure. 
 
South East 
 
In the South East, the number of children born each year usually exceeds 
the PAN and this locality exports a large number of children to 
neighbouring localities. 
 
South West 
 
The South West locality has seen the largest growth in the number of 
children born and even though this locality exports to other neighbouring 
localities, the number is increasing. 
 

2.3 It is clear from this analysis that the localities that are in the highest need 
for additional school places are the North West, South West and the South East 
parts of the city. These localities need to be prioritised in basic need growth if the 
city is to have enough local places for parents to choose from. It was concluded 
that, if the city's aspiration for good quality local provision with healthy schools in 
the heart of their communities is to be sustained, these localities needed to be 
the first to be considered for expansion. This policy direction also supports the 
development of the city in sustainable neighbourhoods, reduced car journeys to 
school, reducing congestion and reducing the impact of the growth of carbon 
emissions. 
 
 

Page 72



 
3.0 Consultation with Schools 
 
3.1 Following the approval of the recommendations contained within the 19 
October 2010 cabinet report, a number of meetings have been held with schools 
and their governors. Certain schools were originally identified through their Net 
Cap data where accommodation within these schools could be utilised to meet 
the critical demand for the 2011 growth, which is very difficult to achieve by 
capital works due to the lead in time to arrange and deliver buildings works. 
Schools that have odd number PANs or half year groups have also been 
targeted so this growth offers the opportunity to rectify inefficiencies that lead to 
poor organisation of classes which in turn can lead to children missing out. 
 
3.2 Meetings were then held to discuss and challenge schools in the use of 
buildings for efficient use, in order to create sustainable and viable schools able 
to gain maximum advantage through their size. Following consultation 
headteachers and chairs of governing bodies have been asked by letter to 
confirm their willingness to increase their PAN to support the additional need in 
2011 and to agree to future building alterations as necessary. 
 
3.3 The meetings looked at utilising existing space in schools in the first year 
(September 2011) with the minimum investment. It was acknowledged that this 
initial growth came with an implication that the school would need to have capital 
investment to its buildings to meet the 2012 demand as the increase in its PAN 
started to feed through the school years.  
 
3.4 The results of the consultation are that each school has been cautious in 
their agreement to expand. Governors are concerned that the capital investment 
will either not be available to meet the demand, or be insufficient to provide the 
accommodation that will offer children a varied and rich curriculum. There is also 
concern that acceptance of growth will leave the school with a legacy of 
temporary accommodation that in the past has been hard to resolve with long 
term capital solutions. 
 
3.5 Governors have also expressed considerable concern that due to the very 
limited capital investment available to Basic Need those schools which are 
expanded will have less space outside general teaching to offer an enriched 
curriculum which is considered as a negative on the current position. 
 
3.6 Governors have also expressed concerns about the progression of the 
growth in dealing with odd year groups and the deficit funding as the growth 
feeds into schools.  
 
 
 
 

Page 73



 
3.7 All governors, despite their concerns have responded positively to the 
need to ensure their communities are well served for school places and therefore 
welcome the growth, there remains more work to satisfy governors with the detail 
of investment as the programme is developed. 
 
3.8 As a result of the above five schools have been identified, these are: 
 
Riverside Community Primary School – NW Locality 
 
Weston Mill Community Primary School – SW Locality 
 
Mount Wise Community Primary School – SW Locality 
 
Prince Rock Community Primary School – SE Locality 
 
Ernesettle Community School – NW Locality 
 
4.0 Planned Admission Number increases 
 
4.1 Each of the schools would be required to increase their Planned 
Admission Number (PAN) from September 2011 for reception admissions. The 
Local Authority will complete an in-year variation for each of the schools to 
increase numbers as illustrated below: 
 
Name of School Current PAN Proposed PAN – September 2011 
Riverside Community Primary 
School 

60 90 - additional 30 places 

Weston Mill Community Primary 
School 

45 60 - additional 15 places 

Mount Wise Community 
Primary School 

30 60 - additional 30 places 

Prince Rock Community 
Primary School 

30 60 – additional 30 places 

Ernesettle Community School 45 60 – additional 15 places 
 
4.2 In total this would generate 120 extra reception places for 2011 which 
meets the projected demand. The admissions team will consult and plan the full 
increase in the schools’ PAN, not just the reception age, for 2012 which will 
follow the full statutory processes. 
  
4.3 A further projection of 144 places are needed for 2013. These expansions 
will be dealt with by an expansion of schools in wave 2-4 and be subject to a 
further cabinet paper in summer 2011. 
 
 

Page 74



5.0 Capital implications 

5.1 Delivering additional school places can potentially have a high capital cost 
if they are all created by building new classes. In the initial stages of growth 
however, there are many schools that have spaces that do not count to the 
available net capacity of the building. These can often be converted to 
classrooms that meet initial Basic Need growth. The conversion of this space can 
be at relatively low cost, or indeed in some cases, no cost at all. This means that 
in the first year of growth it is relatively easy to find primary schools that can take 
an extra reception class in September 2011.  This means that the initial growth 
has relatively low capital impact. There are however implications for using this 
accommodation because, as places are offered to parents with children in 
reception a commitment is being made that this school would have spaces 
available as the child grows through the years while new reception classes are 
joining each year. It therefore follows that a decision to expand the PAN for 
reception is implying a capital project that follows on in the second year. The 
capital modelling for wave 1 makes allowance for five schools to increase their 
PAN’s as listed in section 4.0. 
 
5.2 After wave 1 there are fewer schools that have the opportunity to expand 
in the way described above and it is necessary therefore to begin expanding the 
school before the PAN is increased so it has the accommodation ready to meet 
the obligations of the school places offered. Clearly this means that capital costs 
are going to be higher and more front loaded.  
 
5.3 The affordability of the Basic Need programme has been modelled based 
on the first two years which incorporates the wave 1 schools and the starting of 
some wave 2 projects. Further updates to the affordability of projects in 2014/15 
and 2015/16 will become clear when the Government make announcements on 
the arrangements for capital investment in schools in the spring. This will form 
part of the corporate capital programme when monitoring papers are presented 
to Cabinet throughout the year. 
 

6.0 Criteria for choosing waves 

6.1 Chiefly the priority for demand has been in the hot spots of the NW, SW 
and SE localities and schools serving these localities have been given the 
highest priority for wave 1. 
 
6.2 Careful consideration has been given to those schools that could offer 
space in the existing building for September 2011 as well as the opportunity to 
add either a whole or half a form of entry to the school by 2012. These schools 
were given a high weighting in the analysis as they offered the greatest 
opportunity to meet demand and would make the programme affordable in the 
short term.  
 

Page 75



Wave 1 schools and project allocations 

The wave 1 proposals are as follows: 
 
School Name Project details Funding 

allocation for 
2011/12 

£000 

Funding allocation 
2012/13 
 

£000 
Weston Mill Refurbishment works to 

deliver changes to spaces to 
become classrooms  

220 Nil 

 
Riverside 

Ph1 convert ICT room to 
class room Ph2 New build 
classrooms as a Early years  

30 1,270 

Mount Wise Major refurbishment of 
aspects of the school to 
create teaching spaces 
alongside 187sqm of new 
build 

30 720 

Ernesettle Major refurbishment of 
aspects of the school to 
create teaching spaces 
alongside 187sqm of new 
build. 

30 880 

Prince Rock Major refurbishment of Floor 
2, minor refurbishment to a 
small number of existing 
classrooms as well as roof 
repairs and addressing DDA 
accessibility 

90 580 

There will be a residual cost of £1,021,000 for these projects in FY2014 - 2016 
New starts  Nil £820 
Abnormals   100 1,030 
 Total 500 5,300 
 
6.3 Schools involved have been made aware of the proposals however it is 
expected that there will be alterations as governors, staff and pupils are involved 
in shaping the proposals. 
 
6.4 Further consultation will be undertaken in the spring over the distribution 
of growth and a further decision on wave 2-4 priority will be brought to Cabinet in 
the summer. 
 

7.0 The method of calculating the Basic Need allocations 

7.1 The Council has well established records on the costs of building schools 
from the recent investment programmes so is in a good position to assess 
building costs. It is this cost basis that has been used in setting the allocations. 
 
 
 

Page 76



7.2 The formula to arrive at the allocations for each school has used the 
national guidance of floor area for primary schools (BB99), less 15%. This 
reduction is the new government assessment of reduced floor area needed in 
schools. The calculation takes the advised floor area for the proposed size of 
school and subtracts the measured area of the existing building. This creates a 
new build foot print to which a new build cost /m2 is applied  This method means 
that existing inefficiencies in the existing buildings need to be addressed in the 
proposal as the buildings will only just be big enough to meet their purpose. 
 
7.3 In addition to the new build area a judgement has been made to the area 
of refurbishment that is needed, this has been divided into major and minor 
refurbishment which use different rates /m2. 
 
7.4 The new build and refurbishment area assessments have been shared 
with schools in letters sent in January 2011.  
 
8.0 Abnormals 
 
8.1 It is expected that each project will have the need to overcome some 
specific works that are necessary for the planned works to go ahead. Examples 
of these costs are; planning obligations, or significant repair work to existing 
buildings, or costs associated with unforeseen work in the ground. These are 
known as abnormals. Such costs have been allocated to a separate capital line 
so that they can be assessed across the programme and allocated out using a 
virement once the issue has been properly evaluated by the Project Board. 
 

9.0 Programme Governance 

9.1 Officers have committed to reviewing the management of the overall 
capital programme and its governance by June 2011. This review will include 
future management of the Children's Services capital programme. In the 
meantime projects will continue to be managed and delivered through officers in 
Children's Services and Corporate Support, overseen by the Capital Delivery 
Board which will challenge and approve the capital expenditure in accordance 
with the Council’s priorities. Projects will continue to be reported via the quarterly 
budget and performance reports.  
 
9.2 Under the Capital Delivery Board delivery, responsibility for the 
programme will be given to the senior responsible person who will be the 
Programme Director for Learning Environments, who will chair a programme 
board which will have delegated authority to make all decisions affecting the 
procurement and management of the programme. This board will delegate the 
day-to-day responsibility for managing the programme to a programme manager.  
 
 
 

Page 77



 
9.3 It will be the senior responsible person who will be responsible for taking 
projects through the Council’s project management processes and gain the 
relevant approvals through the Capital Delivery Board of the Council. All this 
authority shall be exercised in accordance with City Council standing orders and 
financial regulations. 
 
9.4 Membership of the Board shall be drawn from the City Council and other 
major stakeholders. It shall be the responsibility of the senior responsible person 
to set up the programme team and board. 
 
9.5 A detailed risk register has been developed that has informed the 
corporate risk register and a full communications plan is being developed. 
 

10.0 PFI 

10.1 One of the proposals in wave 1 would be to build at a PFI school site, this 
is due to the acute pressure for places in Barne Barton given the number of new 
houses that are being built in the area. 
 
10.2 Building on a PFI site requires the PFI contract to be varied. Early and 
informal discussions with the Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) suggest that they 
are keen to ensure that the city expansion is not hindered by the PFI contractual 
relationship. Modelling undertaken has assumed that the variation would be on a 
design and build basis. The Council would not be seeking to use the SPV to 
finance the project, and delivery of the facilities management would be 
negotiated based on an affordable level of service from the school’s delegated 
budget. The purpose of this negotiated position would be to ensure that the level 
of the unitary charge is not increased beyond the value of the capital injection to 
deliver the project. 
 
11.0 Section 106 and Tariff 

11.1 Detailed analysis of all available Section106 and Tariff money that is 
banked by the authority has been undertaken and all projects that could be 
funded through this infrastructure investment have been taken into account for 
wave 1. Future waves of projects will depend heavily on the allocation of Section 
106 and Tariff funding as they seek to respond to not only the birth rate growth 
but also city growth and inward migration which is subject to major planning 
applications. Negotiations have taken place on substantial infrastructure need in 
Plymstock Quarry, Millbay and the Northern Corridor. There will however 
continue to be a tension between the tight government capital settlements and 
developers bearing the infrastructure costs through Section 106 and Tariff. 
 

 
 

Page 78



 
12.0 Use of temporary accommodation 

12.1 A procurement option that is available to the authority would be to seek 
tenders for the new classrooms from system build or temporary classroom 
manufacturers, This option is from a market that is relatively untested in 
Plymouth although is a growing market across the country. It is intended to soft 
market test this option alongside a more traditional 50 year life construction to 
fully understand the advantages and disadvantages of this type of construction. 
 
12.2 Given the ability in the initial stages to take advantage of existing 
buildings, in  wave 1 options appear to be affordable in a traditional method, 
however the shorter term value for money option of using system build may 
prove attractive to make the programme as a whole affordable when phase 2-4 
are included. 
 

Recommendations  

1. That Cabinet approve the in year expansion of PAN’s for reception year as 
listed in section 4.0 and that by virtue of this, Cabinet also give approval to 
officers commencing the public consultation on the formal expansion of 
these schools by raising their PAN in 2012. 

 
2. That Cabinet approve that officers continue to consult with schools to 

develop proposals for expansion after 2011 subject to available funding. 
 
3. That Cabinet approve the provisional allocations in section 6.0 and delegate 

to the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People, in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Finance, Property, People and Governance and the 
S151 officer approval of virements within the Council approved programme 
as projects reach greater clarity. 

 
4. That officers are given authority to set up the governance of the Basic Need 

programme as set out in section 9.0 to steer the programme of work. 
 
 

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
  
Subject:    Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF) –  

    Funding Application   

Committee:    Cabinet 

Date:    8 March 2011 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Wigens 

CMT Member:   Director for Development and Regeneration 

Author: Steven Flaxton, Senior Transport Planner (Major Schemes)  

Contact:    Tel:  01752 30 5543 
    e-mail: steven.flaxton@plymouth.gov.uk  

Ref:    PTH/major_schemes/0721B LSTF 

Key Decision: Yes 
 
Part: I    
 
Executive Summary:  
 
Approval is sought for Plymouth Transport and Highways (PTH) to submit a funding 
bid to the Department for Transport (DfT) for funding from the Local Sustainable 
Transport Fund (LSTF). The capital funding sought will be in addition to the allocations 
already identified by DfT for Plymouth through the Local Transport Plan (LTP) 
Integrated Block and the funding will also provide additional DfT revenue support for 
‘smarter choices’ measures. The deadline for the bid submission is 18th April 2011; 
therefore approval to submit the bid is required at the Cabinet meeting on 8th March 
2011. 
 
The bid directly supports Plymouth’s growth agenda by providing key sustainable 
transport links which will allow communities access to active travel facilities and 
provide them with a greater awareness of the public transport options available. The 
bid is fully in line with Plymouth’s adopted Second Local Transport Plan (LTP), and the 
proposed new Third LTP, as well as being identified within the Local Development 
Framework (LDF) Core Strategy and within the North Plymstock Area Action Plan 
(AAP). 
 
Plymouth’s bid will include a package of infrastructure measures aimed at encouraging 
a greater uptake of sustainable travel such as walking, cycling and public transport. 
These infrastructure improvements will be supported by ‘smarter choices’ measures 
such as Personalised Travel Planning (PTP) within local communities.         
Corporate Plan 2010-2013 as amended by the four new priorities for the City and 
Council:   
 
Plymouth’s LSTF scheme will directly support three of the four new corporate priorities 
for Delivering Growth, Reducing Inequalities and Providing Value for Communities: 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10Page 81



Deliver Growth 
The scheme directly supports Plymouth’s growth agenda and helps to provide some of 
the strategic infrastructure required to allow the challenging mode share targets set for 
developments in the City Centre and on the Eastern Corridor to be achieved. The 
walking and cycling infrastructure, combined with PTP, will encourage sustainable 
links to new and existing developments. 
 
The proposals encompass a key strategic location providing access to all road users 
to the City Centre, Barbican, Hoe, University and many other cultural and leisure 
facilities. 
 
The scheme complements the Market Recovery Plan as it will put in place a proportion 
of the strategic transport infrastructure that will support sustainable travel for existing 
and new residential and employment based development in the City Centre and on the 
Eastern Corridor. 
 
Reduce Inequalities 
The scheme will provide improvements for pedestrians and cyclists by linking socially 
deprived areas of the City such as Devonport, Stonehouse, Millbay and the East End 
to employment areas such as the City Centre, East End, the Morley Park and Sherford 
developments, and the Langage Energy Park. The scheme will also provide better 
public transport information from targeted PTP. 
 
Increased accessibility will enable more people to use their local facilities and will also 
provide improved connectivity to leisure opportunities. Improved awareness and 
information of public transport services will be of particular benefit for those who do not 
have access to a car. 
 
Provide Value for Communities 
The scheme further builds upon the benefits of the East End Transport Scheme 
thereby providing additional benefits to the local community 
 
The scheme will help reduce the environmental impact of transport activities by 
encouraging a greater uptake of more sustainable travel, thereby assisting the viability 
of the city centre and local businesses. Modal switch to more sustainable travel will 
help to reduce congestion and the associated lost hours to businesses and services, 
thereby improving the local economy. The scheme will be both environmentally and 
financially sustainable. 
 
Other Value for Money benefits will be achieved through: 

• Time savings; 
• Reduced carbon footprint; 
• Improved local air quality in Air Quality Management Area (AQMA); 
• Improved noise emissions; 
• Reduced congestion; 
• Safety improvements; 

 
The links will also improve accessibility to education, leisure and healthcare facilities. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82



          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
The revenue funding for projects that could be obtained through a successful bid is 
estimated at up to £3m. There will be no additional ongoing maintenance costs 
associated with the revenue elements of the bid. This is because the smarter choices 
measures will not become an ongoing activity once the funding has ceased and it is 
anticipated that the bus services will become commercial at the end of the funding 
period. It is anticipated that the Smartphone Application will also be self-financing in 
the long term through the support of advertising space. 
 
The capital funding for projects that could be obtained through a successful bid is 
estimated at up to £2m. This could be supplemented with unring-fenced mainstream 
capital grant and S106 receipts subject to approval (£1.05 million of LTP Integrated 
Block and £0.75 million of Morley Park (formerly known as Plymstock Quarry) S106, 
as well as other third party contributions). 
 
The maintenance costs associated with the capital schemes, approximately £360,000 
over fifteen years, will be funded through PTH budget and the LTP Integrated Block 
Capitalised Maintenance. Where possible schemes will in fact be designed to reduce 
existing revenue maintenance liabilities. Plymouth City Council's Transport Asset 
Management Plan (TAMP) will make allowance for the whole life cost.  
 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc. 
 
The bid will support the promotion of community safety through providing better 
connected communities and encouraging more walking and cycling. The scheme is 
included within the LTP delivery programme, which has been subject to an Equalities 
Impact Assessment. 
  
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
The Cabinet is recommended to: 
(i) Note this report. 
(ii) Provide approval for Plymouth Transport and Highways to develop and 

submit a bid to the Department for Transport’s Local Sustainable Transport 
Fund on the basis of the outline set out in this report. 

(iii) Authority is delegated to the Cabinet Member for Transport, in consultation 
with the Cabinet Member for Finance, Property, People and Governance,   
Director for Development and Regeneration and the Director for Corporate 
Support, to give final approval to the submission of a bid to the Department 
for Transport’s Local Sustainable Transport Fund.    

 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
1. Plymouth does not submit a bid to the LSTF - Rejected.  
This would mean that Plymouth would miss out on the opportunity for additional 
funding for sustainable transport measures. As the opportunity for Major Scheme 
Funding is not available until 2015/16 at the earliest, this is the only DfT funding 
stream currently available to Plymouth. 
 

Page 83



2. Delay Plymouth’s bid submission to Tranche 2 - Rejected.  
While this would provide more time for the development and submission of a bid, there 
is a concern that the funding could be oversubscribed during Tranche 1 and therefore 
an earlier submission would give Plymouth a better chance of being successful. 
 
Background papers:   
 
Local Sustainable Transport Fund Guidance, January 2011, 
http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/regional/transportfund/pdf/guidance.pdf 
 
 
Sign off:   
 
Fin CDR

 
DevF1
01100
52   
17.02.
11 

Leg JAR
/109
13 

HR  Corp 
Prop 

 IT  Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member Clive Perkin 
 

Page 84



1.0 Introduction to the Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF) 

1.1. The Under Secretary of State for Transport, Norman Baker, announced the 
new Transport White paper, “Creating Growth, Cutting Carbon”, in 
Parliament on 19th January 2011.  

1.2. A major element of the new Coalition Government approach to transport is 
the creation of the Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF), offering 
councils in England up to £560m of project funding over the next  four years 
for schemes that meet two core objectives:  

• support the local economy / facilitate growth; and  
• reduce carbon emissions. 

1.3. The LSTF has an allocation of £560m available nationally between 2011/12 
- 2014/15 and is made up of both Capital and Resource Funding.  

1.4. The Department for Transport (DfT) has stated that in the first years of the 
funding programme £25.25m is already pre-allocated to specific national 
projects. The DfT have also confirmed that they wish to support the 
‘Bikeability’ project throughout the duration of 4 year fund however, specific 
amounts have not yet been determined. 

1.5. The LSTF breaks down as follows (including the above commitments): 

£m  2011-12  2012-13  2013-14  2014-15  Total  

Resource  50  100  100  100  350  

Capital  30  40  60  80  210  

Total 80 140  160  180  560  

Table 1 LSTF Funding Profile 

1.6. Local Authorities who wish to bid for funding from this pot will be required to 
make a local contribution, however a specific value or percentage is not 
suggested in the guidance. Typical contributions for match funding of 
transport schemes are in the order of 10% of the total cost. 

2.0 Plymouth’s LSTF Project Proposals 

2.1. PTH has developed a package of measures to form a bid for submission to 
the LSTF. The proposals seek to help build stronger local economies and 
address the challenges of climate change. 

2.2. This project consists of a package of walking and cycling infrastructure 
improvements along the Eastern Corridor, linking to the Waterfront and to 
Devonport. The project will provide new walking and cycle paths and 
upgrades to existing facilities, including the restoration of the iconic Laira 
Rail Bridge to enable its conversion to a pedestrian and cycle link. The cycle 
facilities will link together areas of Devonport, City Centre, Plymstock, 
Plympton and Langage. The package also includes potential junction 
improvements at Finnigan Road and The Ride, incorporating better 
pedestrian crossing facilities and improving operational efficiency at these 
locations. These infrastructure proposals link residential areas to 
employment, education and healthcare services. 

Page 85



2.3. These measures are to be complemented by targeted ‘smarter choices’ 
measures aimed at helping to influence people’s travel behaviour and 
providing better information about the transport choices available. These 
‘smarter choices’ measures include PTP upgrades to the Authority’s PlymGo 
Travel Information/Planning website and the development of a Smartphone 
Application for local travel information. Branding for this project will need to 
be developed alongside other corporate branding for example the 
‘Destination Plymouth’ project. 

2.4. These proposals support the local economy and facilitate economic 
development through enhancing access to employment and other essential 
services. The scheme helps to tackle the problems of congestion by 
encouraging modal shift towards walking, cycling and public transport as 
well as improving the reliability and predictability of journey times for all 
users. The scheme directly seeks to reduce carbon emissions by 
encouraging modal shift towards more sustainable low carbon modes. 

3.0 Strategic pedestrian / Cycle Links 

3.1. The proposal for bringing the Laira Rail Bridge back into use is identified in 
the Local Development Framework (LDF) Core Strategy and North 
Plymstock Area Action Plan (AAP) and is complemented by the sustainable 
links identified in the Morley Park development proposals.  

3.2. These proposals will also link with the new community planned for Sherford 
and the proposals for walking and cycling links. They will ultimately providing 
a dedicated pedestrian and cycle link between Devonport, City Centre, 
Plymstock, Sherford and Langage. 

3.3. The project adds further value to significant investments already made by 
Plymouth City Council as well as that made by South Hams District Council 
and Devon County Council. The proposed walking and cycling facilities will 
provide faster, safer and more direct long term links to existing infrastructure 
on the Eastern Corridor and link to the National Cycle Network route 27 from 
the City Centre and the west of the city. 

4.0 Project Benefits and Outcomes 

4.1. The scheme will deliver significant benefits to the City and provide the 
opportunity for people to travel by more sustainable modes. Key benefits 
include: 

• Provision of part of the active travel infrastructure required to support 
the delivery of the new developments in the City Centre, Sherford 
New Community,  Morley Park and Langage; 

• Increased walking and cycle usage in the city through improved cycle 
link connectivity, providing safer on and off-line routes and reduced 
journey times; 

• Lock in the benefits of the East End Transport Scheme; 
• Provide long term links to National Cycle Network (NCN) and facilities 
provided in neighbouring authorities; 

• Encourage physical fitness of users, particularly in deprived 
neighbourhoods in the west of the city; 

• Improved air quality in AQMA and residential areas; 

Page 86



• Reduced congestion and improved journey times; 
• Improved network management; 
• Encourage independent, sustainable travel; 
• Support the commercial development of public transport routes. 

5.0 Corporate Priorities 

5.1. Table 2 below, identifies the projects contribution to the new corporate 
priorities for the City and the Council. 

Corporate 
Priority  Comments 

Deliver 
Growth 

As identified in Table 4, the scheme directly supports Plymouth’s growth 
agenda and helps to provide some of the strategic infrastructure required 
to allow the challenging mode share targets set for developments in the 
City Centre and on the Eastern Corridor to be realised. The walking and 
cycling infrastructure combined with PTP will encourage sustainable links 
to new and existing developments. 

 The proposals encompass a key strategic location providing access to all 
road users to the City Centre, Barbican, Hoe, University and many other 
cultural and leisure facilities. 

 The scheme complements the Market Recovery Plan as it will put in place 
a proportion of the strategic transport infrastructure that will support 
sustainable travel for existing and new residential and employment based 
development in the City Centre and on the Eastern Corridor. 

Reduce 
inequalities 

The scheme will provide significant improvements for public transport, 
pedestrians and cyclists linking socially deprived areas of the City such as 
Devonport, Stonehouse, Millbay and the East End to employment areas. 

 Increased accessibility will enable more people to use their local facilities 
and leisure facilities such as the Saltram Estate. Improved awareness and 
information of public transport services will be of particular benefit for those 
who do not have access to a car. 

Provide value 
for 
communities 

The scheme further builds upon the benefit of the East End Transport 
Scheme thereby providing added benefits. 

The Scheme will help reduce the negative impact of traffic growth by 
encouraging a greater uptake of more sustainable travel thereby assisting 
the viability of the City Centre and local businesses. 

 Other VFM benefits will be achieved through: 

Time savings; Reduced carbon footprint; Improved local air quality in 
AQMA; Improved noise emissions; Reduced congestion; Safety 
improvements. 

 The links will also improve accessibility to education facilities. 
Table 2 LSTF Project’s Contribution to PCC’s Corporate Priorities 

6.0 Strategic Fit – Local Transport Plan (LTP) 

6.1. The LSTF proposals deliver the objectives of Plymouth’s Third LTP and will 
provide added value to the strategy for managing sustainable travel in the 
city. 

6.2. Sustainable travel has a key role in enabling growth, reducing carbon 
emissions, reducing inequalities and improving health through Plymouth’s 
Third LTP.  The aim is to reduce the barriers and provide people of all ages 

Page 87



and abilities with the choice of walking, cycling and public transport as a 
method of travel.  This will be achieved through the delivery of a package of 
measures; both infrastructure and non-infrastructure based.  Infrastructure is 
targeted at the completion of Plymouth’s adopted Strategic Cycle Network to 
provide direct, more convenient routes, improve facilities for pedestrians and 
continue delivery of the high quality public transport network.  Non-
infrastructure measures include travel planning, marketing, information and 
cycle training, to encourage use by providing a gentle nudge in the “right” 
direction. 

7.0 Strategic Fit - Local Development Framework 

7.1. The package of walking and cycling measures, complemented by targeted 
PTP directly supports the following LDF Strategic Objectives (SO) and 
Policies: 

SO2 Delivering the City Vision. 
3. A city of sustainable linked communities 
7. A transformed public transport network 

SO3 Sustainable linked communities. 
6. Promoting fully accessible neighbourhood served by good public 
transport, walking and cycling and other transport both within the 
community as well as linking adjoining communities and the city as a 
whole. 

SO4 Delivering the Quality City. 
4. Promoting a highly accessible, safe, well connected city. 

SO 14 Delivering Sustainable Transport 
4. Improving accessibility and social inclusion through providing for a 
compact city of sustainable linked communities. 
5. Reducing the rate of traffic growth of traffic congestion through 
promoting modal shift to sustainable transport methods. 
9. Promoting walking and cycling as a major mode of travel in the city and 
in support of community, health and tourism objectives. 

CS28 Local Transport Considerations. 
6. Promoting Walking and Cycling. Development of a network of safe 
walking and cycling route, connecting to transport interchanges, linking 
communities and re creational areas in the city and beyond. 
Table 3 LSTF contribution to LDF Strategic Objectives and Policies. 

7.2. The cycle link over Laira Rail Bridge also delivers part of the strategic 
transport infrastructure identified in the North Plymstock AAP. The vision 
diagram identifies the facility to link both the existing residential areas of 
Plymstock as well as the new community proposed at Morley Park. 

8.0 LSTF Eligibility 

8.1. The scheme is considered suitable to meet the Government’s essential 
funding criteria identified in the LSTF guidance published in January 2011. 
The essential criteria is summarised below: 

Carbon Carbon savings anticipated to be created from modal shift towards 

Page 88



Savings walking and cycling from infrastructure proposals and towards 
public transport from Personalised Journey Planning. 

Support 
Growth 

The scheme provides improved links between existing and 
proposed residential areas such as Devonport, Millbay, Plymstock 
and Plympton to employment areas such as the City Centre, 
Cattedown Wharfs, Marsh Mills Retail Park and Langage Energy 
Park. 

The project also provides better sustainable links to education 
facilities such as: 

•  University of Plymouth 
•  Colleges 
•  Secondary Schools 
•  Primary Schools 

Provide 
Value for 
Money 

High scheme benefits anticipated. Health benefits will significantly 
outweigh any dis-benefits. Possible bus and general traffic journey 
time and reliability improvements associated with junction 
improvements. 

PTP/Smarter choices will provide people with information relating to 
the transport options available to them, encouraging modal shift 
towards more sustainable modes thereby helping to manage 
congestion and associated negative impacts. 

Further builds upon the benefits already invested in the East End 
Transport Scheme. 

Financial 
Sustainability 

The long term maintenance implications need to be fully costed 
however given the links committed under the Morley Park 
development S106 the benefits of this scheme will be sustained 
long after the funding period. 

Deliverable The scheme is suitably advanced to Preliminary Design stage and 
is considered deliverable within the timeframes of the funding bid. 

Affordable The scheme will have an assessment of the whole life costs and 
high-level economic appraisal undertaken prior to submission to 
DfT. 

Local 
Contribution 

A local contribution is anticipated to be delivered through a number 
of funding streams including the LTP, working in partnership with 
Planning the Saltram Masterplan proposals, working in partnership 
with Sustrans. 

Table 4 DfT Essential Eligibility Criteria and the Scheme’s contribution to them. 
 

8.2. The LSTF guidance also identifies criteria in which bids will be looked upon 
favourably and these are: 

Deliver 
wider social 
& economic 
benefits 

The scheme will deliver wider social and economic benefits for the 
East End, Plymstock and Plympton communities. The scheme will 
also provide wider benefits linking recreational use of the Saltram 
Country Park and estate by encouraging visitors to arrive to the site 
by more sustainable means. 

The Laira Rail Bridge route is identified within the LDF Core 
Strategy and has been supported with a contribution to extending 

Page 89



the facility through the Morley Park development S106 agreement. 

The PTP will help indentify transport options available to people and 
open up opportunities to them. 

Improve 
safety 

The section of Laira Bridge between Finnigan Road and The Ride 
inclusive had 45 accidents between 01/01/2005 and 31/12/2009. Of 
these, 17 were personal injury accidents with 15 casualties. 

There is not considered to be a specific pattern for vulnerable road 
users, however one casualty involved a power two wheel and 
another involved a casualty on a public service vehicle. 

Improve air 
quality 

The scheme will improve air quality through the East End, Plympton 
and Plymstock through greater uptake of more sustainable modes. 
Part of the scheme is located within the Exeter Street AQMA. 

Increase 
physical 
activity 

Increased levels of cycling will lead to increased levels of physical 
activity resulting in health benefits for users and the health system. 

Support 
from 
community 
interests 

Support anticipated from walking and cycling groups and from local 
neighbourhoods. Eastern Corridor consultation identified many 
positive comments on the proposals. 

PTP and improvements to public transport should also attract 
support from Passenger Focus 

Partnership 
working 

Opportunities for partnership working may exist with the following 
organisations and voluntary groups: 

• PCC Internal Departments  
• Neighbouring Authorities / Agencies 
• Community Liaison Groups 
• Cycling Organisations 
• Bus Operators 
• Public Health Development Trust (PHDU) 
• Disability Action Network (D.A.N) 
• Local Access Forum (LAF) 
• The Plymouth Chamber of Commerce & Industry 
• Environment Agency 
• Private Developers 
• Network Rail 
• National Trust  
• Natural England 
• University of Plymouth (UoP) 
• Wealthy Theme Group 

Table 5 DfT Favourable Eligibility Criteria and the Scheme’s contribution to them. 
 

9.0 Community Participation 

9.1. Preliminary consultation in relation to the capital infrastructure aspects of the 
scheme has been undertaken under the Eastern Corridor Major Scheme 
consultation.  

9.2. This consultation identified a good level of support and positive comments 
for the conversion of the Laira Rail Bridge to a pedestrian and cycle link. 

Page 90



9.3. Further consultation will be required if the funding bid is successful in order 
to inform the detailed design process. 

10.0 Promoting Equality of Opportunity 

10.1. Plymouth’s objective to be a city where people choose to live with a healthy, 
growing population and realising its potential as one of Europe’s finest 
waterfront cities can only really be achieved if its benefits are available to all. 

10.2. There exist barriers which a significant proportion of people in the city face 
in order to access work, education, training or healthcare. These include not 
having access to a car, not being able to take the bus, the service or facility 
not being available at a suitable time, limited travel horizons and not being 
able to walk or cycle. 30% of households in Plymouth do not have a car, 
generally because buying and running one is unaffordable. There is a strong 
correlation between social deprivation and car ownership. 

10.3. Getting access to the services and facilities that many take for granted can 
improve quality of life and increase confidence and aspirations. Those 
deprived areas with low car ownership tend to be the same areas with high 
unemployment and poor health. Low car ownership is also associated with 
high levels of missed hospital appointments. 

10.4. This bid will provide solutions which will enable more people to take 
advantage of the opportunities that the city offers. Delivery partnerships will 
focus on accessing healthcare, education and training, employment and 
leisure facilities.  

11.0 Capital Costs 

11.1. An initial capital cost estimate has been prepared for the highway 
infrastructure associated with the bid and a summary is provided in Table 6 
below. The capital cost is estimated to be £3.88 million, although it should 
be noted that this is indicative and it will be finalised once scheme 
development work is complete. 

Scheme Element Cost Estimate  

Friary Park Path £   140,000 

Ride and Finnigan Road Junctions £   820,000 

Laira Rail Bridge and associated ramps £2,920,000 

Total £3,880,000 
Table 6 Capital Cost 

12.0 Revenue Costs 

12.1. The revenue elements of the bid are still being determined but the 
approximate value will be £3 million. This will cover PTP, measures to 
promote walking and cycling, bus Kickstart funding and improvements to 
PlymGo. 

Page 91



13.0 Maintenance Costs 

13.1. Over fifteen years the maintenance cost of the highway infrastructure is 
estimated to be £363,000. Maintenance in the early to later years will be 
largely routine in nature, representing the smaller proportion of the costs, 
and it is envisaged that these will be absorbed within the existing 
maintenance revenue budgets. More significant capital expenditure will not 
be necessary until the later years and will be funded as capitalised 
maintenance.  Plymouth City Council's Transport Asset Management Plan 
(TAMP) will make allowance for the whole life cost and this will reflect this 
gradually increasing spending profile.  

13.2. Alongside the TAMP, PTH is currently investigating other initiatives such as 
the principle of ‘Lean Streets’ which seek to reduce on going maintenance 
liabilities by removing street clutter and simplifying the transport network to 
minimise the amount of infrastructure required. Reducing maintenance costs 
on parts of our existing network will help offset the maintenance associated 
with delivering sustainable transport outcomes with specific reference to 
lengths of new cycleway. 

13.3. There will be no additional ongoing maintenance costs associated with the 
revenue element of the bid. This is because the smarter choices measures 
will not become an ongoing activity once the funding has ceased and it is 
anticipated that the bus services will become commercial at the end of the 
funding period. It is anticipated that the Smartphone Application will also be 
self-financing in the long term through the support of advertising space. 

14.0 Funding 

14.1. The funding package is still being developed, but the LSTF guidelines have 
specified that for minor schemes the maximum amount of funding available 
will be £5 million and that this will be split between approximately £2 million 
capital and £3 million revenue. The implication of this is that an additional 
£1.8 million of funding will be required to support the capital element of the 
bid. It is anticipated that this will predominantly come from LTP funding, 
approximately£1.05 million and Morley Park Section 106 funding, 
approximately £0.75 million (Of the £4.54 million allocated to off-site 
highway works as part of the Morley Park Section 106 Agreement £1.5 
million of this can be drawn down from the developer on first occupation 
which is currently programmed for 2014).  

14.2. Additional potential sources of funding, both revenue and capital, could 
include: SUSTRANS, transport operators, health sector and other third party 
organisations who may benefit from the scheme. 

15.0 Delivery 

15.1. The design of the infrastructure aspects to the project will be procured 
through the Plymouth / Amey LG Highway Services partnership contract. 

15.2. It is anticipated that the physical construction of the infrastructure 
improvements will be delivered through the Plymouth / Amey LG Highways 
Services Partnership contract and through the Amey supply chain. In the 
event that this scheme cannot be secured by this mechanism, it will then be 
subject to the usual OJEU tendering process. 

Page 92



15.3. It likely that some of the smarter choice measures may be a new activity to 
the Authority and will therefore require a tendering process to be undertaken 
in accordance with Plymouth City Council’s Procurement Procedures. 

15.4. The PTP aspect of the bid may be an activity which is able to be carried out 
internally within PCC or it may be delivered wholly or partially externally. If 
the latter is the case, it will be undertaken in accordance with Plymouth City 
Council’s Procurement Procedures. 

15.5. It is anticipated that the work to develop the ‘Kickstart’ bus services will be 
carried out by existing PTH officers, following the usual bus service 
tendering process in accordance with Plymouth City Council’s Procurement 
Procedures. 

16.0 Programme Milestones 

16.1. The delivery programme for the LSTF scheme has yet to be fully developed, 
however it is anticipated that the revenue elements will be delivered across 
the full four years of funding whilst the capital elements will be in the last 
three years. 

17.0 Risks 

17.1. Table 7 below, identifies the Top 5 risks to the project. 

Top 5 Risks: Mitigation Measures: Comments / Cost 
Assumptions: 

1. Increased Utility 
works & cost. 

Carry out Preliminary NRSWA 
assessments at early stage of 
design. 

This will be identified in the 
Risk Register and a suitable 
allowance will be made. 

2. Capital Funding 
reduced or delayed 
from DfT. 

Alternative sources of funding to 
be identified. 

 

3. Increased costs 
associated lead paint 
on Laira Rail Bridge. 

Increased costs of refurbishing This will be identified in the 
Risk Register and a suitable 
allowance will be made. 

4. Legal issues 
surrounding transfer 
of the bridge 

Sustrans have been approached 
with a view to being a delivery 
partner to the project 

This will be identified in the 
Risk Register and a suitable 
allowance will be made. 

5. Planning 
Permission not given / 
delayed 

Pre-app discussions will take 
place to ensure that the 
appropriate amount of information 
is provided 

An allocation has been made 
in the cost plan for gaining 
approval. An allocation will be 
made in the Risk Register to 
cover unforeseen delays. 

Table 7 Top 5 Project Risks 

18.0 Delivery Partners 

18.1. The guidance on the application process for the LSTF is very clear that 
projects which have the support of community interests and incorporate 
participation and partnership working will be viewed favourably during DfT’s 
assessment of schemes.  

Page 93



18.2. Plymouth’s LSTF bid may be able to be delivered through partnership 
working with Sustrans and public transport operators. Sustrans has already 
expressed an interest in the project proposals and is keen to be involved in 
the project development and delivery 

19.0 Next Steps 

19.1. A workshop organised by DfT is taking place on 14th February which is 
being attended by PTH Officers. This workshop will provide the opportunity 
for clarification of the funding guidance and for attendees to raise any 
queries. 

19.2. It is proposed that with approval from Cabinet that PTH submit an 
application to the Department for Transport’s Local Sustainable Transport 
Fund to meet the deadline of 18th April 2011 for inclusion in the Tranche 1 
funding assessments. 

19.3. DfT have indicated that a decision will be announced as to which authorities 
have been successful towards the end of June 2011. 

20.0 Recommendation 

20.1. The Cabinet is recommended to:  

20.2. (i)  Note this report. 

20.3. (ii) Provide approval for Plymouth Transport and Highways to develop and 
submit a bid to the Department for Transport’s Local Sustainable Transport 
Fund on the basis of the outline set out in this report. 

20.4. Authority is delegated to the Cabinet Member for Transport, in consultation 
with the Cabinet Member for Finance, Property, People and Governance,   
Director for Development and Regeneration and the Director for Corporate 
Support, to give final approval to the submission of a bid to the Department 
for Transport’s Local Sustainable Transport Fund.    

Page 94



Agenda Item 12Page 95
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13Page 101
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 103
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 107
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	Minutes Public Pack, 08/02/2011 Cabinet

	6 YOUNG CARERS
	Young Carers in Plymouth Scrutiny Report

	7 AWARD OF INSURANCE CONTRACTS
	8 SETTING THE SCHOOLS REVENUE BUDGET 2011/12
	9 SERVICES FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE BASIC NEED PROGRAMME
	10 LOCAL SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT FUND - FUNDING APPLICATION
	12 AWARD OF INSURANCE CONTRACTS (E3)
	13 MOUNT EDGCUMBE 2011/12 - 2013/14 BUDGET SETTING (E3)
	Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee minutes held on 10 December 2010
	Mount Edgcumbe 2011.12 - 2013.14 Budget Setting - Report to the Joint Committee


